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Up to 85,750,000 Shares of Class A Common Stock
and
Up to 1,336,329,949 Shares of Class A Common Stock
Up to 44,350,000 Warrants to Purchase Class A Common Stock
Offered by the Selling Securityholders

This prospectus supplement is being filed to update and supplement the information contained in the prospectus dated August 24, 2021 (the
“Prospectus”), which forms part of our registration statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-258348) with the information contained in our Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2021, filed with the SEC on November 15, 2021 (the “Quarterly Report”). Accordingly, we have attached
the Quarterly Report to this prospectus supplement.

The Prospectus and this prospectus supplement relate to: (1) the issuance by us of an aggregate of up to 85,750,000 shares of our common stock, par
value $0.0001 per share (“Class A common stock”), consisting of (a) 41,400,000 shares of Class A common stock issuable upon exercise of the Public
Warrants, (b) 42,850,000 shares of Class A common stock issuable upon exercise of the Private Placement Warrants and (c) 1,500,000 shares of Class A
common stock issuable upon exercise of the Working Capital Warrants, and (2) the offer and sale from time to time by the selling securityholders named in
the Prospectus (the “Selling Securityholders”), or their permitted transferees, of (a) up to 1,336,329,949 shares of Class A common stock, consisting of (i)
1,244,157,121 issued and outstanding shares of Class A common stock, (ii) 47,822,828 shares of Class A common stock subject to vesting and/or exercise
of the assumed Lucid Equity Awards and (iii) 44,350,000 shares of Class A common stock issuable upon exercise of the Private Placement Warrants and
the Working Capital Warrants, and (b) 44,350,000 warrants representing the Private Placement Warrants and the Working Capital Warrants.

This prospectus supplement updates and supplements the information in the Prospectus and is not complete without, and may not be delivered or
utilized except in combination with, the Prospectus, including any amendments or supplements thereto. This prospectus supplement should be read in
conjunction with the Prospectus and if there is any inconsistency between the information in the Prospectus and this prospectus supplement, you should
rely on the information in this prospectus supplement. Terms used in this prospectus supplement but not defined herein shall have the meanings given to
such terms in the Prospectus.

We are an “emerging growth company” as defined in Section 2(a) of the Securities Act and are subject to reduced public company reporting
requirements. We expect that we will cease to be an emerging growth company as of December 31, 2021. As of July 23, 2021 our majority stockholder,
Ayar, owned approximately 62.7% of our outstanding common stock. As a result, we are a “controlled company” within the meaning of Nasdaq rules and,
as a result, qualify for exemptions from certain corporate governance requirements. Ayar also currently has the ability to nominate five of the nine directors
to our Board.

You should read the Prospectus, this prospectus supplement and any additional prospectus supplement or amendment carefully before you invest in our
securities. Our Class A common stock is listed on The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC under the symbol “LCID”. On November 15, 2021, the closing price of
our Class A common stock was $44.88 per share.




Investing in our Class A common stock and warrants involves a high degree of risk. See the section titled “Risk Factors” beginning on page 8
of the Prospectus.

Neither the SEC nor any other state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed on the adequacy or
accuracy of the Prospectus or this prospectus supplement. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

November 16, 2021
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during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing
requirements for the past 90 days. Yes [ No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting company, or an
emerging growth company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” “smaller reporting company,” and “emerging growth
company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
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If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). I Yes No

Number of shares of the registrant’s Class A common stock outstanding at November 9, 2021: 1,646,366,945
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This quarterly report on Form 10-Q contains statements that express our opinions, expectations, beliefs, plans, objectives, assumptions or projections
regarding future events or future results and therefore are, or may be deemed to be, “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”). These forward-looking
statements can generally be identified by the use of forward looking terminology, including the terms “believes,” “estimates,” “anticipates,” “expects,”
“seeks,” “projects,” “intends,” “plans,” “may,” “will” or “should” or, in each case, their negative or other variations or comparable terminology. These
forward-looking statements include all matters that are not historical facts. They appear in a number of places throughout this quarterly report on Form 10-
Q and include statements regarding our intentions, beliefs or current expectations concerning, among other things our ability to recognize the anticipated
benefits of the business combination between Atieva, Inc.and Churchill Capital Corp. IV, in which Atieva, Inc. became a wholly owned subsidiary of
Churchill Capital Corp IV, results of operations, financial condition, liquidity, prospects, growth, strategies and the markets in which we operate, including
estimates and forecasts of financial and operational metrics, projections of market opportunity, market share and product sales, expectations and timing
related to commercial product launches and production volumes and launch of commercial production, including with respect to energy storage systems
and automotive partnerships, the start of deliveries, future manufacturing capabilities and facilities, studio openings, future sales channels and strategies,
future vehicle programs, expansion and the potential success of our go-to-market strategy and our financial and operating guidance, and future capital
expenditures and other operating expenses. Such forward-looking statements are based on available current market material and our current expectations,
beliefs and forecasts concerning future developments. Factors that may impact such forward-looking statements include:

” « »

» « » «

» changes in domestic and foreign business, market, financial, political and legal conditions;
»  risks relating to the uncertainty of our projected financial information, including conversion of reservations into binding orders;

* risks related to the timing of expected business milestones and commercial launch, including our ability to mass produce the Lucid Air and
complete the tooling of our manufacturing facility;

»  risks related to the expansion of our manufacturing facility and the increase of our production capacity;

»  risks related to future market adoption of our offerings;

» the effects of competition and the pace and depth of electric vehicle adoption generally on our future business;

» changes in regulatory requirements, governmental incentives and fuel and energy prices;

*  our ability to rapidly innovate;

» future changes to vehicle specifications which may impact performance, pricing, and other expectations;

*  our ability to enter into or maintain partnerships with original equipment manufacturers, vendors and technology providers;

*  our ability to effectively manage our growth and recruit and retain key employees, including our chief executive officer and executive team;

* our ability to establish our brand, expand our brand to Europe and the Middle East and capture additional market share and forecast projected
market share and demand, and the risks associated with negative press or reputational harm;

*  our ability to manage expenses;

*  our ability to effectively utilize zero emission vehicle credits and obtain and utilize certain tax and other incentives;
»  our ability to issue equity or equity-linked securities in the future;

» the outcome of any potential litigation, government and regulatory proceedings, investigations and inquiries;

+  the impact of the global COVID-19 pandemic on our projected results of operations, financial performance or other financial metrics, or on any of
the foregoing risks; and

» other factors disclosed in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q or our other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”).




The forward-looking statements contained in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q are based on our current expectations and beliefs concerning future
developments and their potential effects on our business. There can be no assurance that future developments affecting our business will be those that we
have anticipated. These forward-looking statements involve a number of risks, uncertainties (some of which are beyond our control) or other assumptions
that may cause actual results or performance to be materially different from those expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. These risks
and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, those factors described under the heading “Risk Factors” in Part II, Item 1A. Should one or more of these
risks or uncertainties materialize, or should any of the assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary in material respects from those projected in
these forward-looking statements. We do not undertake any obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise, except as may be required under applicable securities laws.

Frequently Used Terms

Unless otherwise stated in Item 1. Financial Statements and accompanying footnotes, or the context otherwise requires, references in this Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q to:

“Ayar” are to Ayar Third Investment Company, an affiliate of PIF;

“Churchill” are to Churchill Capital Corp IV, a Delaware corporation and our predecessor company prior to the consummation of the Transactions, which
changed its name to Lucid Group, Inc. following the consummation of the Transactions, and its consolidated subsidiaries;

“Churchill IPO” are to the initial public offering by Churchill which closed on August 3, 2020;

“Closing” are to the consummation of the Transactions;

“Closing Date” are to July 23, 2021, the date on which the Transactions were consummated;

“Exchange Ratio” are to the quotient as defined in, and calculated in accordance with, the Merger Agreement, which is 2.644;

“Legacy Lucid” are to Atieva, Inc., d/b/a Lucid Motors, an exempted company incorporated with limited liability under the laws of the Cayman Islands,
and its consolidated subsidiaries before the Closing Date;

“Merger” are to the merger of a merger subsidiary of Churchill and Atieva, Inc., with Atieva, Inc. surviving such merger as a wholly owned subsidiary of
Churchill;

“Merger Agreement” are to that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of February 22, 2021, by and among Churchill, Lucid and Merger Sub, as
the same has been or may be amended, modified, supplemented or waived from time to time;

“PIF” are to the Public Investment Fund;

“PIPE Investment” are to the private placement subscription agreements that Churchill entered into contemporaneously with the execution of the Merger
Agreement whereby Churchill has agreed to issue and sell to certain investors $2.5 billion of Churchill’s Class A common stock at a purchase price of
$15.00 per share. The PIPE Investment closed simultaneously with the Closing of the Merger; and

“Transactions” are to the Merger, together with the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement and the related agreements.

» « » <

Unless the context otherwise requires, all references in this section to “Lucid,” the “Company,” “we,” “us,” “our,” and other similar terms refer to Legacy
Lucid and its subsidiaries prior to the Closing, and Lucid Group, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its subsidiaries after the Closing.




PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements.
LUCID GROUP, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
Unaudited

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

September 30, December 31,

2021 2020
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,796,880 $ 614,412
Accounts receivable, net 261 260
Other receivable 27,434 —
Short-term investments 505 505
Inventory 61,155 1,043
Prepaid expenses 80,353 21,840
Other current assets 20,213 24,496
Total current assets 4,986,801 662,556
Property, plant and equipment, net 965,901 713,274
Right-of-use assets 143,782 —
Other noncurrent assets 42,700 26,851
TOTAL ASSETS $ 6,139,184 $ 1,402,681
LIABILITIES, CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 8,914 $ 17,333
Accrued compensation 28,949 16,197
Finance lease liabilities, current portion 3,268 —
Other current liabilities 228,277 151,753
Total current liabilities 269,408 185,283
Convertible preferred stock warrant liability — 2,960
Finance lease liabilities, net of current portion 4,687 —
Common stock warrant liability 836,835 —
Other long-term liabilities 183,096 39,139
Total liabilities 1,294,026 227,382

Commitments and contingencies (Note 14)
CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK
Convertible preferred stock, $0.0001 par value; 0 and 1,058,949,780 shares authorized as of September 30, 2021

and December 31, 2020, respectively; 0 and 957,159,704 shares issued and outstanding as of September 30,

2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively; liquidation preference of $0, and $3,497,913 as of September 30,

2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively — 2,494,076
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Preferred stock, par value $0.0001; 10,000,000 and 0 shares authorized as of September 30, 2021 and

December 31, 2020, respectively; no shares issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2021 and December 31,

2020, respectively — —
Common stock, par value $0.0001; 15,000,000,000 and 1,189,800,259 shares authorized as of September 30, 2021

and December 31, 2020, respectively; 1,641,642,816 and 28,791,702 shares issued and outstanding as of

September 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively 164 3
Additional paid-in capital 9,865,186 38,113
Accumulated deficit (5,020,192) (1,356,893)

Total stockholders' equity (deficit) 4,845,158 (1,318,777)
TOTAL LIABILITIES, CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(DEFICIT) $ 6,139,184 $ 1,402,681

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.




LUCID GROUP, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Unaudited
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2021 2020 2021 2020
Revenue $ 232 $ 334 $ 719 $ 342
Cost of revenue 3,320 609 3,424 550
Gross profit (3,088) (275) (2,705) (208)
Operating expenses
Research and development 242,408 133,890 586,579 341,589
Selling, general and administrative 251,554 27,935 455,478 57,719
Total operating expenses 493,962 161,825 1,042,057 399,308
Loss from operations (497,050) (162,100) (1,044,762) (399,516)
Other income (expense), net
Change in fair value of forward contracts — — (454,546) (8,719)
Change in fair value of convertible preferred stock warrant liability — (57) (6,976) 171)
Change in fair value of common stock warrant liability (24,787) — (24,787) —
Transaction costs expensed (2,717) — (2,717) —
Interest expense (76) (10) (111) (20)
Other income (expense), net 249 785 (151) 76
Total other income (expense), net (27,331) 718 (489,288) (8,834)
Loss before provision for (benefit from) income taxes (524,381) (161,382) (1,534,050) (408,350)
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes 22 (145) 31 (245)
Net loss and comprehensive loss (524,403) (161,237) (1,534,081) (408,105)
Deemed dividend related to the issuance of Series E convertible
preferred stock — — (2,167,332) —
Net loss attributable to common stockholders $ (524,403) $ (161,237) $ (3,701,413) $ (408,105)
Weighted average shares outstanding used in computing net loss per share
attributable to common stockholders, basic and diluted 1,217,032,285 24,279,817 432,654,607 20,889,062
Net loss per share attributable to common stockholders, basic and diluted ~ $ (0.43) $ (6.64) $ (8.56) $ (19.54)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.




LUCID GROUP, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Unaudited

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Total
Convertible Additional Stockholder’s
Preferred Stock C Stock Paid-In Accumulated Equity

Three Months Ended September 30, 2021 Shares®) Amount Shares®V) Amount Capital Deficit (Deficit)
Balance as of June 30, 2021 1,155,909,367 $ 5,836,785 36,799,150 $ 4 $ 26,613 $ (4,495,789) $ (4,469,172)

Net loss — — — — — (524,403) (524,403)

Conversion of convertible preferred stock into common

stock in connection with the reverse recapitalization (1,155,909,367) (5,836,785) 1,155,909,367 116 5,836,669 — 5,836,785

Issuance of common stock and common stock warrants

upon the reverse recapitalization, net of issuance costs — — 425,395,023 42 3,590,914 — 3,590,956

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of common

stock warrants — — 22,651,424 2 173,271 — 173,273

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock

options — — 887,852 — 762 — 762

Stock-based compensation — — — — 236,957 — 236,957
Balance as of September 30, 2021 —  $ — 1,641,642,816 $ 164 $ 9,865,186 $ (5,020,192) $ 4,845,158

Total
Convertible Additional Stockholder’s
Preferred Stock C Stock Paid-In Accumulated Equity

Three Months Ended September 30, 2020 Shares) Amount Shares() A Capital Deficit (Deficit)
Balance as of June 30, 2020 667,574,747 $ 1,513,573 22,842,891 $ 2 8 18,736 $ (884,381) $ (865,643)

Net loss — — — — — (161,237) (161,237)

Repurchase of Series C convertible preferred stock (9,656,589) (20,398) — — 10,537 — 10,537

Issuance of Series E convertible preferred stock 167,273,525 498,931 — — — — —

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock

options — — 4,989,779 1 2,562 — 2,563

Stock-based compensation — — — — 1,276 — 1,276
Balance as of September 30, 2020 825,191,683 $ 1,992,106 27,832,670 $ 3 3 33,111 $  (1,045,618) $  (1,012,504)

@ The number of shares of convertible preferred stock and common stock issued and outstanding prior to the Merger have been retroactively adjusted by
the Exchange Ratio to give effect to the reverse recapitalization treatment of the Merger. See Note 1 - Description of Business and Note 3 - Reverse

Capitalization for more information.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.




LUCID GROUP, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT) - continued
Unaudited
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Total
Convertible Additional Stockholder’s
Preferred Stock C Stock Paid-In Accumulated Equity
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2021 Shares) Amount Shares® A Capital Deficit (Deficit)
Balance as of December 31, 2020 957,159,704 $ 2,494,076 28,791,702 $ 38,113 $ (1,356,893) $ (1,318,777)
Net loss — — — — — (1,534,081) (1,534,081)
Repurchase of Series B convertible preferred shares (3,525,365) — — — — — —
Issuance of Series D convertible preferred stock upon
exercise of warrants 1,546,799 12,936 — — — — —
Issuance of Series E convertible preferred stock 200,728,229 3,206,159 — — (22,395) (2,129,218) (2,151,613)
Share-based compensation related to Series E
convertible preferred stock — 123,614 — — — — —
Conversion of convertible preferred stock into
common stock in connection with the reverse
recapitalization (1,155,909,367) (5,836,785) 1,155,909,367 116 5,836,669 — 5,836,785
Issuance of common stock and common stock warrants
upon the reverse recapitalization, net of issuance costs — — 425,395,023 42 3,590,914 — 3,590,956
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of common
stock warrants — — 22,651,424 2 173,271 — 173,273
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock
options — — 8,895,300 1 6,028 — 6,029
Stock-based compensation = — — — 242,586 — 242,586
Balance as of September 30, 2021 —  $ — 1,641,642,816 164 $ 9865186 $  (5,020,192) $ 4,845,158
Total
Convertible Additional Stockholder’s
Preferred Stock C Stock Paid-In Accumulated Equity
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2020 Shares() Amount Shares(® A Capital Deficit (Deficit)
Balance as of December 31, 2019 502,582,534 $ 1,074,010 21,288,741 2 3 16,432 $ (637,513) $ (621,079)
Net loss — — — — — (408,105) (408,105)
Issuance of Series D convertible preferred stock 164,992,213 400,000 — — — — —
Settlement of Series D contingent forward contract
liability — 39,563 — — — — —
Repurchase of Series C convertible preferred stock (9,656,589) (20,398) — — 10,537 — 10,537
Issuance of Series E convertible preferred stock 167,273,525 498,931 — — — — —
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock
options — — 6,543,929 1 2,885 — 2,886
Stock-based compensation — — — — 3,257 — 3,257
Balance as of September 30, 2020 825,191,683 $ 1,992,106 27,832,670 3 $ 33,111 $  (1,045,618) $ (1,012,504)

() The number of shares of convertible preferred stock and common stock issued and outstanding prior to the Merger have been retroactively adjusted by
the Exchange Ratio to give effect to the reverse recapitalization treatment of the Merger. See Note 1 - Description of Business and Note 3 - Reverse

Capitalization for more information.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.




LUCID GROUP, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Unaudited
(in thousands)

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss $  (1,534,081) $ (408,105)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 26,621 5,447
Amortization of insurance premium 7,184 —
Non-cash operating lease cost 8,629 —
Stock-based compensation 366,200 3,257
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 56 139
Change in fair value of contingent forward contract liability 454,546 8,719
Change in fair value of preferred stock warrant liability 6,976 171
Change in fair value of common stock warrant liability 24,787 —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 1) (163)
Inventory (60,112) (1,863)
Financed insurance premium (41,935) —
Prepaid expenses (23,762) 9,556
Other current assets 8,299 3,254
Other noncurrent assets and security deposit (5,861) (9,324)
Accounts payable (14,175) (30,109)
Accrued compensation 12,752 8,880
Operating lease liability (4,516) —
Other liabilities and accrued liabilities 17,834 22,732
Other long-term liabilities 5,158 10,002
Net cash used in operating activities (745,401) (377,407)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, equipment, and software (299,313) (355,860)
Proceed from sale of property, equipment, and software 19 —
Net cash used in investing activities (299,294) (355,860)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.




LUCID GROUP, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - continued
Unaudited
(in thousands)

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2021 2020
Cash flows from financing activities:
Payment for short-term insurance financing note $ (16,819) $ —
Payment for capital lease liabilities — (174)
Payment for finance lease liabilities (1,915) —
Proceeds from short-term insurance financing note 41,935 —
Repurchase of Series B convertible preferred stock (3,000) —
Repurchase of Series C convertible preferred stock — (9,861)
Proceeds from issuance of Series D convertible preferred stock 3,000 400,000
Proceeds from issuance of Series E convertible preferred stock 600,000 499,724
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 6,027 2,886
Proceeds from the exercise of public warrants 173,273 —
Proceeds from the reverse recapitalization 4,439,153 —
Payment of transaction costs related to the reverse recapitalization (4,811) —
Net cash provided by financing activities 5,236,843 892,575
Net increase in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash 4,192,148 159,308
Beginning cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash 640,418 379,651
Ending cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash $ 4,832,566 $ 538,959
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest $ 324 $ 21
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activity:
Property and equipment included in accounts payable and accrued expense $ 5756 $ 81,011
Property and equipment and right-of-use assets obtained through leases 70,756 —
Issuance of Series D convertible preferred stock upon settlement of contingent forward contracts — 39,563
Issuance of Series D convertible preferred stock upon exercise of preferred stock warrants 9,936 —
Issuance of Series E convertible preferred stock contingent forward contracts 2,167,332 793
Capital contribution upon forfeit of Series E awards 15,719 —
Issuance of Series E convertible preferred stock upon settlement of contingent forward contracts 2,621,878 —
Issuance of common stock upon conversion of preferred stock in connection with the reverse recapitalization 5,836,785 —
Transaction costs related to the reverse recapitalization not yet paid $ 34,054 $ —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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LUCID GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2021
(Unaudited)

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
Overview

Lucid Group, Inc. (“Lucid”) is a vertically-integrated technology and automotive company focused on designing, developing, manufacturing, and selling
the next generation of electric vehicle (“EV”), EV powertrains and battery systems.

Lucid was originally incorporated in Delaware on April 30, 2020 under the name Churchill Capital Corp IV (formerly known as Annetta Acquisition Corp)
(“Churchill”) as a special purpose acquisition company with the purpose of effecting a merger with one or more operating businesses. On February 22,
2021, Churchill entered into a definitive merger agreement (the “Merger Agreement”) with Atieva, Inc. (“Legacy Lucid”) in which Legacy Lucid would
become a wholly owned subsidiary of Churchill (the “Merger”). Upon the closing of the Merger on July 23, 2021 (the “Closing”), Churchill was
immediately renamed to “Lucid Group, Inc.” The Merger between Churchill and Legacy Lucid was accounted for as a reverse recapitalization. See Note 3
— Reverse Recapitalization for more information.

Throughout the notes to the consolidated financial statements, unless otherwise noted, the “Company,” “we,” “us” or “our” and similar terms refer to
Legacy Lucid and its subsidiaries prior to the consummation of the Merger, and Lucid and its subsidiaries after the consummation of the Merger.

Liquidity and Going Concern

The Company devotes its efforts to business planning, research and development, recruiting of management and technical staff, acquiring operating assets,
and raising capital.

From inception through September 30, 2021, the Company has incurred operating losses and negative cash flows from operating activities. For the nine
months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, the Company has incurred operating losses, including net losses of $1.5 billion and $408.1 million,
respectively. The Company has an accumulated deficit of $5.0 billion as of September 30, 2021.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2021, the Company completed the first phase of the construction of its newly built manufacturing plant in Casa Grande,
Arizona (the “Arizona plant”). The Company began commercial production of its first vehicle, the Lucid Air, in September 2021 and delivered its first
vehicles in late October 2021. The Company continues to expand the Arizona plant and build-out of a network of retail sales and service locations. The
Company has plans for continued development of additional vehicle model types for future release. The aforementioned activities will require considerable
capital, above and beyond the expected cash inflows from the initial sales of the Lucid Air. As such, the future operating plan involves considerable risk if
secure funding sources are not identified and confirmed.

The Company’s existing sources of liquidity include cash and cash equivalents. Prior to the Merger, the Company historically funded operations primarily
with issuances of convertible preferred stock and convertible notes. Upon the completion of the Merger, the Company received $4,400.3 million in cash
proceeds, net of transaction costs. The Company believes the Merger eliminated the substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern within one year after the date of issuance of this quarterly report on Form 10-Q (the “Quarterly Report”).

Certain Significant Risks and Uncertainties

The Company’s current business activities consist of research and development efforts to design and develop a high-performance fully electric vehicle and
advanced electric vehicle powertrain components, including battery pack systems; building of the Company’s production operations in Casa Grande,
Arizona; and build-out of the Company’s retail stores and service centers for distribution of the vehicles to customers. The Company is subject to the risks
associated with such activities, including the need to further develop its technology, its marketing, and distribution channels; further develop its supply
chain and manufacturing; and hire additional management and other key personnel. Successful completion of the Company’s development program and,
ultimately, the attainment of profitable operations are dependent upon future events, including its ability to access potential markets, and secure long-term
financing.
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The Company participates in a dynamic high-technology industry. Changes in any of the following areas could have a material adverse impact on the
Company’s future financial position, results of operations, and/or cash flows: advances and trends in new technologies; competitive pressures; changes in
the overall demand for its products and services; acceptance of the Company’s products and services; litigation or claims against the Company based on
intellectual property, patent, regulatory, or other factors; and the Company’s ability to attract and retain employees necessary to support its growth.

In late 2019, a novel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) began to affect the population of China and expanded into a worldwide pandemic during 2020,
leading to significant business and supply chain disruptions, as well as broad-based changes in supply and demand. The Company’s operations have
experienced disruptions, such as temporary closure of its offices, and those of its customers and suppliers, and product research and development. The
Company was able to proceed with the construction of the Arizona plant while still meeting all COVID-19 restrictions and required safety measures. The
extent of the impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s operational and financial performance will depend on future developments, including the duration
and spread of the outbreak. Nevertheless, COVID-19 presents a material uncertainty and risk with respect to the Company, its performance, and its
financial results and could adversely affect the Company’s financial position and results of operations.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements included herein have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) and applicable rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
(the “SEC”) regarding interim financial reporting. Certain information and disclosures normally included in the financial statements prepared in accordance
with U.S. GAAP have been condensed or omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations. These unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements
should be read together with the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes as of and for the years ended December 31,
2020 and 2019 included in the final prospectus and definitive proxy statement filed on June 25, 2021 with the SEC pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3) under the
Securities Act.

In management’s opinion, these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the same basis as the annual financial
statements and reflect all adjustments, which include normal recurring adjustments, necessary for the fair statement of the Company’s financial position as
of September 30, 2021 and the results of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020. The results of operations for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2021 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full year ending December 31, 2021 or
any other future interim or annual period.

The condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant estimates, assumptions and
judgments made by management include, among others, the determination of the useful lives of property and equipment, fair value of preferred stock
warrants, fair value of common stock warrants, fair value of contingent forward contracts liability, valuation of deferred income tax assets and uncertain tax
positions, fair value of common stock and other assumptions used to measure stock-based compensation expense, and estimated incremental borrowing
rates for assessing operating and financing lease liabilities. These estimates and assumptions are based on management’s best estimates and judgment.
Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis using historical experience and other factors, including the current economic
environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Company adjusts such estimates and assumptions when facts and
circumstances dictate. Changes in those estimates resulting from continuing changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the financial
statements in future periods.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original or remaining maturity at the date of purchase of three months or less to be cash

equivalents.
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Restricted cash in the other current assets is comprised primarily of customer reservation payments for electric vehicles and other escrow deposit for
building of the Arizona plant. Restricted cash included in other non-current assets is primarily related to letters of credit issued to the landlord for the
Company’s headquarter in Newark, California and retail locations, and escrow deposit required under the escrow agreement for the lease with Pinal county,
Arizona, related to the Arizona plant.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash to amounts shown in the statements of cash flows (in thousands):

September 30, December 31, September 30, December 31,

2021 2020 2020 2019
Cash $ 4,796,880 $ 614,412 $ 512,675 $ 351,684
Restricted cash included in other current assets 10,970 11,278 16,998 19,767
Restricted cash included in other noncurrent assets 24,716 14,728 9,286 8,200
Total cash and restricted cash $ 4,832,566 $ 640,418 $ 538,959 $ 379,651

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist of cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments, and
accounts receivable. The Company places its cash primarily with domestic financial institutions that are federally insured within statutory limits, but at
times its deposits may exceed federally insured limits. Further, accounts receivable primarily consists of current trade receivables from a single customer as
of September 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, and the Company’s revenue is primarily from the same customer for each of the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2021 and 2020.

Common Stock Warrants

The Company accounts for warrants for shares of the Company’s common stock that are not indexed to its own stock as liabilities at fair value on the
balance sheet. Liability-classified common stock warrants are subject to remeasurement to fair value as of any respective exercise date and as of each
subsequent balance sheet date with changes in fair value recorded in the Company’s statement of operations. For issued or modified common stock
warrants outstanding that meet all of the criteria for equity classification, the common stock warrants are recorded as a component of additional paid-in
capital and are not remeasured to fair value in subsequent reporting periods.

The Company’s publicly traded common stock warrants (the “public warrants”) are equity-classified instruments because they are deemed indexed to the
Company’s own common stock and did not contain any provision that could require net cash settlement unless the holders of the underlying shares would
also receive the same form of consideration as the holders of public warrants. The Company’s privately placed common stock warrants (the “private
warrants”) are liability-classified instruments because they are not deemed indexed to the Company’s own common stock.

Other Significant Accounting Policies

As of September 30, 2021, there were no material changes in the other significant accounting policies disclosed in Note 2 of the audited consolidated
financial statements as of and for each of the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 included in Lucid’s final prospectus and definitive proxy statement
filed on June 25, 2021 with the SEC pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3) under the Securities Act.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02 (“ASC 842”), Leases, to require lessees to recognize all leases, with certain exceptions, on the
balance sheet, while recognition on the statement of operations will remain similar to current lease accounting. Subsequently, the FASB issued ASU
No. 2018-10, Codification Improvements to Topic 842, Leases, ASU No. 2018-11, Targeted Improvements, ASU No. 2018-20, Narrow-Scope
Improvements for Lessors, and ASU 2019-01, Codification Improvements, to clarify and amend the guidance in ASU No. 2016-02. ASC 842 eliminates
real estate-specific provisions and modifies certain aspects of lessor accounting. This standard is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2018 for public business entities. Private companies are required to adopt the new leases standard for annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2021 and interim periods in annual periods beginning after December 15, 2022. Early adoption is permitted for all entities. The Company
adopted ASC 842 as of January 1, 2021 using the modified retrospective approach (“adoption of the new lease standard”). This approach allows entities to
either apply the new lease standard to the beginning of the earliest period presented or only to the consolidated financial statements in the period of
adoption without restating prior periods. The Company has elected to apply the new guidance at the date of adoption without restating prior periods. In
addition, the Company elected the package of practical expedients permitted under the transition guidance within the new standard, which allowed the
Company to carry forward the historical determination of contracts as leases, lease classification and not reassess initial direct costs for historical lease
arrangements. Accordingly, previously reported financial statements, including footnote disclosures, have not been recast to reflect the application of the
new standard to all comparative periods presented. The finance lease classification under ASC 842 includes leases previously classified as capital leases
under ASC 840.
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The Company has lease agreements with lease and non-lease components, including embedded leases, and has elected not to utilize the practical expedient
to account for lease and non-lease components together, rather the Company is accounting for the lease and non-lease components separately on the
consolidated financial statements.

Operating lease assets are included within operating lease right-of-use (“ROU”) assets. Finance lease assets are included within property, plant and
equipment, net. The corresponding operating lease liabilities and finance lease liabilities are included within other current liabilities and other long-term
liabilities on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2021.

The Company has elected not to present short-term leases on the consolidated balance sheet as these leases have a lease term of 12 months or less at lease
inception and do not contain purchase options or renewal terms that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise. All other lease assets and lease
liabilities are recognized based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term at the later of ASC 842 adoption date or lease commencement
date. Because most of the Company’s leases do not provide an implicit rate of return, the Company used the Company’s incremental borrowing rate based
on the information available at adoption date or lease commencement date in determining the present value of lease payments.

Adoption of the new lease standard on January 1, 2021 had a material impact on the Company’s interim unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements. The most significant impacts related to the (i) recording of ROU asset of $94.2 million, and (ii) recording lease liability of $126.0 million, as of
January 1, 2021 on the consolidated balance sheets. The Company also reclassified prepaid expenses of $0.2 million and deferred rent balance, including
tenant improvement allowances, and other liability balances of $31.8 million relating to the Company’s existing lease arrangements as of December 31,
2020, into the ROU asset balance as of January 1, 2021. ROU assets represent the Company’s right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease
liabilities represent the Company’s obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. The standard did not materially impact the Company’s
consolidated statement of operations and consolidated statement of cash flows.

The cumulative effect of the changes made to the Company’s consolidated balance sheet as of January 1, 2021 for the adoption of the new lease standard
was as follows (in thousands):

Adjustments from

Balances at Adoption of New Lease Balances at
December 31, 2020 Standard January 1, 2021
Assets
Prepaid expenses $ 21,840 $ (180) $ 21,660
Property, plant and equipment, net 713,274 3,237 716,511
Operating lease right-of-use assets — 90,932 90,932
Liabilities
Other current liabilities 151,753 8,030 159,783
Other long-term liabilities 39,139 86,152 125,291

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU No. 2019-12, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes, which simplifies the
accounting for income taxes by eliminating some exceptions to the general approach in Topic 740, Income Taxes in order to reduce cost and complexity of
its application. For public business entities, the guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020 and interim periods within those
fiscal years. For nonpublic entities, the guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021 and interim periods within fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2022. Early adoption is permitted if financial statements have not yet been issued (for public business entities) or have not
yet been made available for issuance (for all other entities). The Company adopted this ASU starting on January 1, 2021. The adoption of this ASU did not
have an immediate impact to the consolidated financial statements and related disclosure.

The Company has considered all other recently issued accounting pronouncements and does not believe the adoption of such pronouncements will have a
material impact on its financial statements or notes thereto.
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NOTE 3 - REVERSE RECAPITALIZATION

On July 23, 2021, upon the consummation of the Merger, all holders of 451,295,965 issued and outstanding Legacy Lucid common stock received shares
of Lucid common stock at a deemed value of $10.00 per share after giving effect to the exchange ratio of 2.644 (the “Exchange Ratio”) resulting in
1,193,226,511 shares of Lucid common stock issued and outstanding as of the Closing and all holders of 42,182,931 issued and outstanding Legacy Lucid
equity awards received Lucid equity awards covering 111,531,080 shares of Lucid common stock at a deemed value of $10.00 per share after giving effect
to the Exchange Ratio, based on the following events contemplated by the Merger Agreement:

» the cancellation and conversion of all 437,182,072 issued and outstanding shares of Legacy Lucid preferred stock into 437,182,072 shares of
Legacy Lucid common stock at the conversion rate as calculated pursuant to Legacy Lucid’s memorandum and articles of association at the date
and time that the Merger became effective (“Effective Time”);

* the surrender and exchange of all 451,295,965 issued and outstanding shares of Legacy Lucid common stock (including Legacy Lucid common
stock resulting from the conversion of the Legacy Lucid preferred stock) into 1,193,226,511 shares of Lucid common stock as adjusted by the
Exchange Ratio;

» the cancellation and exchange of all 25,764,610 granted and outstanding vested and unvested Legacy Lucid options, which became 68,121,210
Lucid options exercisable for shares of Lucid common stock with the same terms and vesting conditions except for the number of shares
exercisable and the exercise price, each of which was adjusted by the Exchange Ratio; and

» the cancellation and exchange of all 16,418,321 granted and outstanding vested and unvested Legacy Lucid RSUs, which became 43,409,870
Lucid RSUs for shares of Lucid common stock with the same terms and vesting conditions except for the number of shares, which was adjusted
by the Exchange Ratio.

The other related events that occurred in connection with the Closing are summarized below:

*  Churchill entered into separate private placement subscription agreements (the “PIPE Investment”) contemporaneously with the execution of the
Merger Agreement pursuant to which Churchill agreed to sell and issue an aggregate of 166,666,667 shares of common stock at a purchase price
of $15.00 per share for an aggregate purchase price of $2,500.0 million. The PIPE Investment closed simultaneously with the Closing of the
Merger;

»  Churchill Sponsor IV LLC (the “Churchill Sponsor”) exercised its right to convert the outstanding and unpaid amount of $1.5 million under the
working capital loan provided by the Churchill Sponsor to Churchill into an additional 1,500,000 private warrants at a price of $1.00 per warrant
in satisfaction of such loan;

*  Churchill and the Churchill Sponsor entered into a letter agreement (the “Sponsor Agreement”), pursuant to which the Churchill Sponsor agreed
that 17,250,000 shares of Churchill’s issued and outstanding common stock beneficially held by the Churchill Sponsor (the “Sponsor Earnback
Shares) and 14,783,333 private warrants beneficially held by the Churchill Sponsor (the “Sponsor Earnback Warrants) to purchase shares of the
Churchill’s common stock shall become subject to transfer restrictions and contingent forfeiture provisions upon the Closing of the Merger until
Lucid’s stock price exceeded certain predetermined levels in the post-Merger period. Any such shares and warrants not released from these
transfer restrictions during the earnback period, which expires on the fifth anniversary of the Closing, will be forfeited back to Lucid for no
consideration. See Note 11 - Earnback Shares and Warrants for more information; and

*  Churchill redeemed 21,644 public shares of Churchill’s Class A common stock at approximately $10.00 per share for an aggregate payment of
$0.2 million.

After giving effect to the Merger and the redemption of Churchill shares as described above, the number of shares of common stock issued and outstanding
immediately following the consummation of the Merger was as follows:

Shares
Churchill public shares, prior to redemptions 207,000,000
Less redemption of Churchill shares (21,644)
Churchill public shares, net of redemptions 206,978,356
Churchill Sponsor shares()) 51,750,000
PIPE shares® 166,666,667
Total shares of Churchill common stock outstanding immediately prior to the Merger 425,395,023
Legacy Lucid shares 1,193,226,511
Total shares of Lucid common stock outstanding immediately after the Merger(3)(4) 1,618,621,534
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(1) The 51,750,000 shares beneficially owned by the Churchill Sponsor as of the Closing of the Merger includes the 17,250,000 Sponsor Earnback
Shares.

(2) Reflects the sale and issuance of 166,666,667 shares of common stock to the PIPE Investors at $15.00 per share.

(3) Excludes 111,531,080 shares of common stock as of the Closing of the Merger to be reserved for potential future issuance upon the exercise of
Lucid options or settlement of Lucid RSUs.

(4) Excludes the 85,750,000 warrants issued and outstanding as of the Closing of the Merger, which includes the 41,400,000 public warrants and
the 44,350,000 private warrants held by the Churchill Sponsor. The 44,350,000 private warrants beneficially owned by the Churchill Sponsor
as of the consummation of the Merger includes the 14,783,333 Sponsor Earnback Warrants.

The Merger has been accounted for as a reverse recapitalization under U.S. GAAP. Under this method of accounting, Churchill has been treated as the
acquired company for financial reporting purposes. The reverse recapitalization accounting treatment was primarily determined based on the stockholders
of Legacy Lucid having a relative majority of the voting power of Lucid and having the ability to nominate the majority of the members of the Lucid board
of directors, senior management of Legacy Lucid comprise the senior management of Lucid, and the strategy and operations of Legacy Lucid prior to the
Merger comprise the only ongoing strategy and operations of Lucid. Accordingly, for accounting purposes, the financial statements of Lucid represent a
continuation of the financial statements of Legacy Lucid with the Merger being treated as the equivalent of Legacy Lucid issuing shares for the net assets
of Churchill, accompanied by a recapitalization. The net assets of Churchill were recognized as of the Closing at historical cost, with no goodwill or other
intangible assets recorded. Operations prior to the Merger are presented as those of Legacy Lucid and the accumulated deficit of Legacy Lucid has been
carried forward after Closing.

All periods prior to the Merger have been retrospectively adjusted using the Exchange Ratio for the equivalent number of shares outstanding immediately
after the Closing to effect the reverse recapitalization.

In connection with the Closing of the Merger, the Company raised $4,439.2 million of gross proceeds, including the contribution of $2,070.1 million of
cash held in Churchill’s trust account from its initial public offering along with $2,500.0 million of cash raised by Churchill in connection with the PIPE
Investment and $0.4 million of cash held in the Churchill operating cash account. The gross proceeds were net of $0.2 million paid to redeem 21,644 shares
of Churchill Class A common stock held by public stockholders and $131.4 million in costs incurred by Churchill prior to the Closing. The Company
additionally incurred $38.9 million of transaction costs, consisting of banking, legal, and other professional fees, of which $36.2 million was recorded as a
reduction to additional paid-in capital of proceeds and the remaining $2.7 million was expensed in the condensed consolidated statements of operations.
The total net cash proceeds to the Company were $4,400.3 million.

NOTE 4 - BALANCE SHEETS COMPONENTS
INVENTORY
Inventory as of September 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020 were as follows (in thousands):

September 30, December 31,

2021 2020
Raw materials $ 48,588 $ 661
Work in progress 11,891 70
Finished goods 676 312
Total inventory $ 61,155 $ 1,043

Inventory as of September 30, 2021 is primarily related to raw materials and work in progress related to the production of vehicles for sale. The inventory
as of September 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020 also includes battery pack systems with its customers.
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PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT, NET
Property, plant, and equipment as of September 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020 were as follows (in thousands):

September 30, December 31,

2021 2020

Land and land improvements $ 1,050 $ 1,050
Building and improvements 190,417 —
Machinery 480,259 28,830
Computer equipment and software 26,174 15,716
Leasehold improvements 89,106 47,187
Furniture and fixtures 10,442 4,503
Capital leases — 3,908
Finance leases 9,857 —
Construction in progress 208,331 636,851

Total property, plant, and equipment 1,015,636 738,045
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (49,735) (24,771)
Property, plant, and equipment — net $ 965,901 $ 713,274

Construction in progress represents the costs incurred in connection with the construction of buildings or new additions to the Company’s plant facilities
including tooling, which is with outside vendors. Costs classified as construction in progress include all costs of obtaining the asset and bringing it to the
location in the condition necessary for its intended use. No depreciation is provided for construction in progress until such time as the assets are completed
and are ready for use. Construction in progress consisted of the following (in thousands):

September 30, December 31,

2021 2020
Tooling $ 106,402 $ 203,241
Construction of Arizona plant 10,806 171,532
Leasehold improvements 67,965 50,790
Machinery and equipment 23,158 211,288
Total construction in progress $ 208,331 $ 636,851

Depreciation and amortization expense for the three months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, was approximately $14.9 million and $2.1 million,
respectively, and for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, was approximately $26.6 million and $5.4 million, respectively.

OTHER CURRENT AND LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Other current liabilities and long-term liabilities as of September 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020 were as follows (in thousands):

September 30, December 31,

2021 2020
Engineering, design, and testing accrual $ 31,271  $ 42,518
Construction in progress 21,638 43,115
Retail leasehold improvements accrual 15,203 6,114
Other professional services accrual 6,029 9,083
Tooling liability 12,338 15,243
Payroll tax liability 32,728 —
Series B convertible preferred stock repurchase liability — 3,000
Short-term insurance financing note 24,674 980
Operating lease liabilities, current portion 14,611 —
Transaction cost liability 40,981 —
Other liabilities 28,804 31,700
Total other current liabilities $ 228277 $ 151,753
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As of September 30, 2021, the Company accrued a non-income tax liability of $32.7 million as other liabilities primarily related to payroll tax associated
with certain compensation related events. The Company also recorded a $27.4 million receivable from employees related to this non-income tax liability as
other receivables on the condensed consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2021.

The Company financed insurance premiums of $41.9 million related to various commercial insurance policies. The insurance policies have various terms
that are less than 2 years. The Company made down payments for the insurance premium finance notes of $9.4 million, and the total interest was $0.4
million, representing annual interest primarily ranging from 2.65% to 2.86%. The Company will make monthly installments of $3.5 million for principal
and interest from May 2021 to December 2022. The Company recorded the total insurance premium of $41.9 million as prepaid insurance and is
amortizing it on a straight-line basis over the term of the insurance. The Company made $5.3 million of principal payments and $0.1 million of interest
payments on the short-term insurance financing note during the three months ended September 30, 2021, and $7.2 million of principal payments and $0.1
million of interest payments during the nine months ended September 30, 2021. The remaining principal balance of $24.7 million is recorded as part of the
Company’s other current liabilities as of September 30, 2021.

September 30, December 31,

2021 2020
Deferred rent $ — % 28,881
Customer deposits 13,398 8,028
Capital lease liabilities — 1,996
Operating leases liabilities, net of current portion 169,433 —
Income tax liabilities 265 234
Total other long-term liabilities $ 183,096 $ 39,139

NOTE 5 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The accounting standard for fair value measurements provides a framework for measuring fair value and requires expanded disclosures regarding fair value
measurements. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received for an asset or the “exit price” that would be paid to transfer a liability in the
principal or most advantageous market in an orderly transaction between independent market participants on the measurement date. The Company
measures financial assets and liabilities at fair value at each reporting period using a fair value hierarchy, which requires the Company to maximize the use
of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. A financial instrument classification within the fair value
hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. This hierarchy prioritizes the inputs into three broad
levels as follows:

»  Level 1—Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

*  Level 2—Observable inputs other than quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities, quoted prices for identical or similar
assets or liabilities in inactive markets, or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the
full term of the assets or liabilities.

»  Level 3—Inputs that are generally unobservable and typically reflect management’s estimates of assumptions that market participants would use in
pricing the asset or liability. Factors used to develop the estimated fair value are unobservable inputs that are not supported by market activity. The
sensitivity of the fair value measurement to changes in unobservable inputs may result in a significantly higher or lower measurement.

Level 1 investments consist solely of short-term and long-term restricted cash valued at amortized cost that approximates fair value. Level 2 investments
consist solely of certificate of deposits. Level 3 liabilities consist of contingent forward contract liability, convertible preferred stock warrant liability and
common stock warrant liability, in which the fair value was measured upon issuance and is remeasured at each reporting date. The valuation methodology
and underlying assumptions are discussed further in Note 6 “Contingent Forward Contracts,” Note 7 “Convertible Preferred Stock Warrant Liability” and
Note 8 “Common Stock Warrant Liability”.
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The following table sets forth the Company’s financial assets subject to fair value measurements on a recurring basis by level within the fair value
hierarchy as of September 30, 2021 (in thousands):

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets:
Short-term investment—

Certificates of deposit $ — % 505 $ — % 505

Restricted cash 35,686 — — 35,686
Total assets $ 35,686 $ 505 $ — 3 36,191
Liabilities:

Common stock warrant liability $ — 3 — % 836,835 $ 836,835
Total liabilities $ — 3 — 3 836,835 $ 836,835

The following table sets forth the Company’s financial assets and liabilities subject to fair value measurements on a recurring basis by level within the fair
value hierarchy as of December 31, 2020 (in thousands):

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets:
Short-term investment—

Certificates of deposit $ — % 505 $ — 3 505

Restricted cash 26,006 — — 26,006
Total assets $ 26,006 $ 505 $ — $ 26,511
Liabilities:

Convertible preferred stock warrant liability $ — 3 — % 2,960 $ 2,960
Total liabilities $ — $ — % 2,960 $ 2,960

A reconciliation of the contingent forward contract liability, convertible preferred stock warrant liability and common stock warrant liability measured and
recorded at fair value on a recurring basis is as follows (in thousands):

Nine Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2021 September 30, 2020
Contingent Convertible Common Contingent Convertible
Forward Preferred Stock Stock Forward Preferred Stock
Contract Warrant Warrant Contract Warrant
Liability Liability Liability Liability Liability
Fair value-beginning of period $ — 2,960 $ — 3 30,844 $ 1,755
Issuance 2,167,332 — 812,048 793 —
Change in fair value 454,546 6,976 24,787 8,719 171
Settlement (2,621,878) (9,936) — (39,563) —
Fair value-end of period $ — % _ 836,835 $ 793 $ 1,926

NOTE 6 - CONTINGENT FORWARD CONTRACTS

In September 2018, the Company entered into a securities purchase agreement with PIF. Along with the execution of the securities purchase agreement, the
Company granted PIF the right to purchase the Company’s Series D convertible preferred stock in future periods. The Company determined PIF’s right to
participate in future Series D convertible preferred stock financing to be freestanding similar to a derivative in the form of contingent forward contracts and
recorded the initial valuation of $18.6 million as a debt discount to the Convertible Notes issued in September 2018.

19




In March 2020, the Company received $200.0 million in exchange for 82,496,092 shares of Series D convertible preferred shares as partial settlement of
the Series D contingent forward contract liability and revalued the contingent forward contract liability to the then fair value of $36.4 million and
reclassified $18.2 million of the contingent forward contract liability into Series D convertible preferred stock. In June 2020, upon satisfaction of the
second set of milestones (refer to Note 9 “Convertible Preferred Stock”), the Company received the remaining $200.0 million in exchange for 82,496,121
shares of Series D convertible preferred stock as final settlement of the Series D contingent forward contract liability and revalued the contingent forward
contracts liability to the then fair value of $39.6 million and reclassified the liability into Series D convertible preferred stock. The Series D contingent
forward contract liability incurred a total fair value loss of $8.7 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2020. Since the Series D contingent
forward contract liability was fully settled in June 2020, there was no related outstanding contingent forward contract liability as of September 30, 2020.

As discussed in Note 9 “Convertible Preferred Stock”, in September 2020, along with the execution of the Securities Purchase Agreement, the Company
granted Ayar Third Investment Company (“Ayar”) the right to purchase the Company’s additional Series E convertible preferred stock upon the Company’s
satisfaction of certain milestones in November 2020. The Company determined Ayar’s right to participate in future Series E convertible preferred stock
financing to be freestanding similar to a derivative in the form of contingent forward contracts and recorded the initial valuation of $0.8 million into
contingent forward contract liabilities.

In December 2020, Ayar waived the Company’s remaining outstanding obligations, and the Company received $400.0 million for the issuance of Series E
convertible preferred stock. Upon settlement, the Company revalued the Series E contingent forward contracts to the then fair value of $110.5 million and
reclassified the contingent forward contract liability into Series E convertible preferred stock. The Company recorded a loss of $109.7 million related to fair
value remeasurements of the Series E contingent forward contracts during the year ended December 31, 2020.

In February 2021, the Company and Ayar entered into Amendment No. 1 to the original Series E Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement (“Amendment
No. 1”). Under the Amendment No. 1, Ayar and the Company agreed to enter into the third closing of additional 133,818,821 Series E convertible preferred
stock at $2.99 per share, aggregating to $400.0 million. Upon the signing of the Amendment No. 1, the Company received the issuance proceeds of $400.0
million from Ayar in February 2021.

Amendment No. 1 also allowed the Company to provide an opportunity to all current convertible preferred stockholders other than Ayar (“Eligible
Holders™) to enter into the fourth closing to purchase up to 23,737,221 shares of Series E convertible preferred stock on a pro rata basis at $2.99 per share,
aggregating to $71.0 million. In addition, the amendment allowed the Company to offer for purchase at the fourth closing at $2.99 per share, a number of
Series E Preferred Stock to senior management employees, directors, consultants, advisors and/or contractors of the Company (“Additional Purchasers”)
and Ayar. Refer to Note 9 - Convertible Preferred Stock.

In April 2021, the Company issued 66,909,408 Series E convertible preferred stock from the fourth closing at $2.99 per share for cash consideration of
$200.0 million. The Company received $107.1 million of the total issuance proceeds in March 2021 and the remaining $92.9 million in April 2021. See
Note 9 - Convertible Preferred Stock for more information.

The Company determined the right to participate in future Series E convertible preferred share financing to be a freestanding financial instrument similar to
a derivative in the form of contingent forward contracts and recorded the initial valuation of $1.4 billion and $722.4 million for the third closing and fourth
closing, respectively, as contingent forward contract liabilities. Since the contingent forward contract liability related to the third closing was fully settled in
the same month following the execution of the amendment, the Company recorded no related fair value remeasurements in the consolidated statements of
operations.

The Company issued Offer Notices to certain of the Company’s management and members of the Board of Directors in March 2021 and April 2021. The
Series E convertible preferred stock issued from the fourth closing included 3,034,194 shares to the Company’s management and 1,658,705 shares to
members of the Board of Directors. The total issuance to the Company’s management included 535,275 shares offered to the CEO in April 2021. The offer
to employees in the fourth closing to participate in future Series E convertible preferred stock financing represent a fully vested, equity classified award.
The award’s full fair value on each recipient’s grant date was recorded as stock-based compensation, and the related contingent forward contract liability
was derecognized. The Company revalued the contingent forward contract liability for the remaining participants and recorded $454.5 million fair value
remeasurement loss related to the contingent forward contract liability for the nine months ended September 30, 2021. Final fair value of the contingent
forward contract liability of $1.2 billion was reclassified into Series E convertible preferred stock upon the fourth closing in April 2021. There was no
related outstanding contingent forward contract liability as of September 30, 2021.
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The fair value of the Series E convertible preferred stock contingent forward contract liability for the third closing was determined using a forward payoff.
The Company’s inputs used in determining the fair value on the issuance date and settlement date, were as follows:

Stock Price $ 13.79
Volatility 100.00%
Expected term (in years) 0.01
Risk-free rate 0.03%

The fair value of the Series E convertible preferred stock contingent forward contract liability for the fourth closing was determined using a forward and an
option payoff. The Company’s inputs used in determining the fair value on the issuance date were as follows:

Fair value of Series E convertible preferred share $ 13.79
Volatility 100.00%
Expected term (in years) 0.11
Risk-free rate 0.03%

The fair value of the Series E convertible preferred stock contingent forward contract liability for the fourth closing was determined as the difference
between the Series E convertible preferred stock fair value and the purchase price. The Company estimated the fair value of each of the Series E
convertible preferred stock on the settlement date by taking the closing price of Churchill’s Class A common stock on April 1, 2021 of $23.78 multiplied by
the expected exchange ratio at the time, and discounted for lack of marketability.

NOTE 7 - CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK WARRANT LIABILITY

In March and September 2017, the Company issued two convertible preferred stock warrants to purchase a total of 1,546,799 shares of Series D convertible
preferred stock, with an exercise price of $1.94 per share. The convertible preferred stock warrants had been recorded at fair value using a Monte-Carlo
simulation at issuance and had been subsequently remeasured to fair value each reporting period with the changes recorded in the condensed consolidated
statements of operations. As of December 31, 2020, 1,546,799 shares of the Warrants had been outstanding with a fair value of $1.94 per share, and
aggregate fair value of $3.0 million.

The Company’s assumptions used in determining the fair value of convertible preferred stock warrants on December 31, 2020 were as follows:

December 31,

2020
Volatility 50.00%
Expected term (in years) 0.5-1.5
Risk-free rate 0.09-0.12%
Expected dividend rate 0.00%

In February 2021, all the outstanding warrants were settled in its entirety at an exercise price of $1.94 per share for an aggregate purchase price of $3.0
million. Upon final settlement, the Company converted the warrant into $12.9 million Series D convertible preferred stock, and recorded $7.0 million loss
related to fair value remeasurements of the warrants in the condensed consolidated statements of operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2021.
The Company recorded $0.1 million and $0.2 million loss related to fair value remeasurements of the warrants for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2020.

The fair value of the Series D preferred stock that was converted from warrant liability at settlement was estimated using the PWERM framework and
considered the same three scenarios and probability for each of the three scenarios used to value our common stock: OPM scenario (20%), as-converted
SPAC scenario (70%), and as-converted IPO scenario (10%). Under the OPM scenario, the fair value of Series D convertible preferred stock was a direct
output of the model used for the equity valuation of the Company and reflected the present value. Under the as-converted SPAC scenario, the present value
of the Series D convertible preferred stock was estimated using the pre-money equity value. Under the as-converted IPO scenario, the Company applied the
market-based approach and determined the fair value based on the average revenue multiples derived from our peer group.
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NOTE 8 - COMMON STOCK WARRANT LIABILITY

On July 23, 2021, in connection with the reverse recapitalization treatment of the Merger, the Company effectively issued 44,350,000 private warrants to
purchase shares of Lucid’s common stock. The private warrants were initially recognized as a liability with a fair value of $812.0 million. The private
warrants remained unexercised and were remeasured to fair value as of September 30, 2021, resulting in a loss of $24.8 million for the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2021, classified within change in fair value of common stock warrant liability in the condensed consolidated statements of
operations.

The 44,350,000 private warrants include the 14,783,333 Sponsor Earnback Warrants subject to the contingent forfeiture provisions. The first earnback
triggering event was satisfied on September 29, 2021. As a result, the first tranche of the Sponsor Earnback Warrants, or 4,927,778 private warrants, were
vested and no longer subject to the transfer restrictions and contingent forfeiture provisions. See Note 11 - Earnback Shares and Warrants for more
information.

The fair value of the private warrants that are not subject to the contingent forfeiture provisions was estimated using a Black-Scholes option pricing model
that takes into account the contract terms as well as the quoted price of the Company’s common stock in an active market. The volatility is based on the
actual market activity of the Company’s peer group as well as the Company's historical volatility. The expected life is based on the remaining contractual
term of the warrants, and the risk free interest rate is based on the implied yield available on U.S. Treasury securities with a maturity equivalent to the
warrants’ expected life. The level 3 fair value inputs used in the valuation were as follows:

September 30, 2021 July 23, 2021
Fair value of private warrants per share $ 18.92 § 18.44
Volatility 75.00% 80.00%
Expected term (in years) 4.8 5.0
Risk-free rate 0.94% 0.72%
Dividend yield —% —%

The fair value of the private warrants that are subject to the contingent forfeiture provisions was estimated using a Monte-Carlo simulation, which involved
random iterations of future stock-price paths over the contractual life of the private warrants, including the probability distribution of outcomes, the payoff
to the holder was determined based on the achievement of the volume-weighted average trading sale price (the “VWAP”) thresholds within each
simulation. The present value of the payoff in each simulation is calculated, and the fair value of the liability is determined by taking the average of all
present values. The level 3 fair value inputs used in the valuation were as follows:

September 30, 2021 July 23, 2021
Fair value of Tranche 1 with $20.00 VWAP threshold per share $ — 3 18.16
Fair value of Tranche 2 with $25.00 VWAP threshold per share $ 18.78 $ 18.07
Fair value of Tranche 3 with $30.00 VWAP threshold per share $ 18.60 $ 17.92
Volatility 75.00% 80.00%
Expected term (in years) 4.8 5.0
Risk-free rate 0.94% 0.72%
Dividend yield —% —%

NOTE 9 - CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK

Convertible Preferred Stock

Upon the Closing of the Merger, all 1,155,909,367 shares of issued and outstanding convertible preferred stock were cancelled and converted into
1,155,909,367 shares of Lucid common stock based upon the conversion rate as calculated pursuant to Legacy Lucid’s memorandum and articles of

association at the date and time that the Merger became effective. As of September 30, 2021, there were no issued and outstanding shares of convertible
preferred stock.
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In 2014 through April 2021, the Company had issued Series A, Series B, Series C, and Series D and Series E convertible preferred stock (“Series A,”
“Series B,” “Series C,” “Series D,” “Series E,” respectively) (collectively, the “Convertible Preferred Stock™).

Convertible preferred stock was carried at its issuance price, net of issuance costs.

In September 2018, concurrent with the execution of the Security Purchase Agreement with PIF, the Company entered into a Stock Repurchase Agreement
(the “Repurchase Agreement”) with Blitz Technology Hong Kong Co. Limited and LeSoar Holdings, Limited (the “Sellers”) to repurchase Series C
convertible preferred stock. From September 2018 to December 31, 2019, the Company repurchased in aggregate 11,331,430 shares of Series C convertible
preferred stock with $60.0 million at a per share price of $5.30 from the first and second Company repurchase.

Third Company Repurchase (Series C - August 2020)

In August 2020, the Company entered into a Stock Repurchase Agreement with the Sellers. Pursuant to the Stock Repurchase Agreement, the Company
agreed to repurchase 9,656,589 shares of Series C convertible preferred stock owned by the Sellers in August 2020 at a price of $1.02 per share for total of
$9.9 million. The carrying value of the repurchased Series C convertible preferred stock is $20.4 million. As such, the Company recognized $10.5 million
in additional paid-in capital under stockholder’s equity in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2020 related to the difference in fair value and
carrying value of the Series C stock repurchased.

Fourth Company Repurchase (Series C - December 2020)
In December 2020, the Company entered into a Stock Repurchase Agreement with Blitz Technology Hong Kong Co. Limited (“Blitz”).

The Company agreed to repurchase 1,850,800 Series C convertible preferred stock from Blitz at a price of $1.21 per share, aggregating to $2.2 million. As
the carrying amount of each share of Series C was $2.42 aggregating to $4.5 million in September 2020, the Company recognized $2.2 million as
additional paid-in capital under stockholders’ deficit in the condensed consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2020, related to the difference in fair
value and carrying value of the Series C shares repurchased.

Fifth Company Repurchase (Series B - December 2020)

On December 22, 2020, the Company entered into an agreement with JAFCO Asia Technology Fund V (“JAFCO”) whereby the Company agreed to
repurchase 3,525,332 Series B convertible preferred stock having a carrying value of $4.0 million, from JAFCO for a total consideration of $3.0 million.
The agreement resulted in an extinguishment of the Series B convertible preferred stock and the Company recognized $1.0 million in additional paid-in
capital being the difference in fair value of the consideration payable and the carrying value of the Series B convertible preferred stock. As of the date of
extinguishment and as of December 31, 2020 the Series B convertible preferred stock subject to repurchase had been mandatorily redeemable within 45
days of the agreement and accordingly had been reclassified to other accrued liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets.

Series D Preferred Stock Issuance

In 2018, the Security Purchase Agreement with PIF granted PIF rights to purchase the Company’s Series D convertible stock at various tranches. The first
tranche of $200.0 million had been issuable upon the approval of the PIF’s equity investment into the Company by CFIUS (refer to Note 6 — Contingent
Forward Contracts). The second and third tranches of $400.0 million each had been issuable upon the Company’s satisfaction of certain milestones related
to further development and enhancement in marketing, product, and administrative activities.

In April 2019, upon CFIUS’s approval of PIF’s equity investment into the Company, the Company received the first $200.0 million proceeds from PIF. In
October 2019, the Company received additional $400.0 million upon achieving the first set of milestones. Together with the conversion of $272.0 million
Convertible Notes and accrued interest, the Company issued 374,777,281 shares of Series D convertible preferred stock at a price of $2.33 per share, for
net proceeds of approximately $872.0 million during the year ended December 31, 2019.

In March 2020, the Company received $200.0 million of the remaining $400.0 million in proceeds from PIF and issued 82,496,092 shares of Series D in
exchange. In June 2020 the Company successfully satisfied certain of the second set of milestones related to further development and enhancement in
marketing, product, and administrative activities, and received a waiver from PIF for the remaining milestones. The Company received the remaining $200
million proceeds in exchange for 82,496,121 shares of Series D convertible preferred stock.
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See activities related to the PIF Convertible Notes and Series D convertible preferred stock funding as below (in thousands):

Conversion of Convertible Notes $ 271,985
Series D received in April 2019 200,000
Series D received in October 2019 400,000
Series D received in March 2020 200,000
Series D received in June 2020 200,000
Contingent forward contract liability reclassified to Series D 39,564
Conversion of preferred stock warrant to Series D in February 2021 3,000
Reclassification of preferred stock warrant liability to Series D in February 2021 9,936
Total proceeds of Series D $ 1,324,485

Series E convertible preferred stock Issuance

In September 2020 the Company entered into an arrangement with Ayar to issue and sell Series E convertible preferred stock pursuant to a securities
purchase agreement (the “SPAE”). Along with the execution of the SPAE, the Company granted Ayar the right to purchase additional Series E convertible
preferred stock upon the Company’s satisfaction of certain milestones in November 2020. The Company determined Ayar’s right to participate in future
Series E convertible preferred stock financing to be freestanding, similar to a derivative in the form of contingent forward contracts, and recorded the initial
valuation of $0.8 million as a contingent forward contract liability. The contingent forward contract terms were included within the SPAE, which dictated a
price of $2.99 per share of Series E convertible preferred stock. The Company needed to satisfy two sets of milestone conditions relating to further
development and enhancement in marketing, product, and administrative activities for Ayar to provide funding under the SPAE.

Immediately upon closing of the SPAE, the Company received the full first tranche of $500.0 million in funding in exchange for 167,273,525 Series E
convertible preferred stock as the requirement for the first milestones were met prior to execution of the purchase agreement. Subsequently, the Company
successfully satisfied certain of the second set of milestones and received a waiver from PIF for the remaining milestones; and on December 24, 2020, the
investor provided $400.0 million of funding in exchange for 133,818,821 shares as the final issuance of Series E convertible preferred stock related to the
second milestones. Upon final settlement, the Company re-valued the liability associated with the contingent forward contract to the then fair value of
$110.5 million from a contingent liability of $0.8 million and derecognized the liability as the contract was settled in its entirety. The Company recognized
the increase in fair value of $109.7 million in the condensed consolidated statements of operations and reclassified the liability into convertible preferred
stock on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2020.

In February 2021, the Company and Ayar entered into Amendment No. 1 to the original Series E Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement (“Amendment
No. 1”). Under the Amendment No. 1, Ayar and the Company agreed to enter into the third closing of additional 133,818,821 shares of Series E convertible
preferred stock at $2.99 per share, aggregating to $400.0 million. Upon the signing of the Amendment No. 1, the Company received the issuance proceeds
of $400.0 million from Ayar in February 2021.

Amendment No. 1 also allowed the Company to provide an opportunity to all current convertible preferred stockholders other than Ayar (“Eligible
Holders”) to enter into the fourth closing to purchase up to 23,737,221 shares of Series E convertible preferred stock on a pro rata basis at $2.99 per share,
aggregating to $71.0 million. In addition, the amendment allowed the Company to offer for purchase at the fourth closing at $2.99 per share, a number of
Series E Preferred Stock to senior management employees, directors, consultants, advisors and/or contractors of the Company (“Additional Purchasers”).
The aggregate number of Series E Preferred Stock sold at the third closing and fourth closing would not exceed 200.7 million shares (“Extension
Amount”). Ayar committed to purchase the entire Extension Amount to the extent not subscribed by Eligible Holders or Additional Purchasers.

In April 2021, the Company issued 66,909,408 Series E convertible preferred stock from the fourth closing at $2.99 per share for cash consideration of
$200.0 million. The Company received $107.1 million of the entire cash consideration in March 2021, and the remaining $92.9 million in April 2021. The
Company issued Offer Notices to certain of the Company’s management and members of the Board of Directors in March 2021 and April 2021. The
Series E convertible preferred stock issued from the fourth closing included 3,034,194 shares to the Company’s management and 1,658,705 shares to
members of the Board of Directors. The total issuance to the Company’s management includes 535,275 shares offered to the CEO in April 2021. The offer
to employees to participate in a future Series E convertible preferred stock financing represented a fully vested, equity classified award. The excess of the
award’s fair value over the purchase price of $123.6 million on each recipient’s grant date during the nine months ended September 30, 2021 was recorded
as stock-based compensation.
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Along with the execution of Amendment No. 1, the Company also increased the authorized number of common shares and convertible preferred stock to
1,316,758,889 and 1,155,909,398 stock, respectively.

As of December 31, 2020, the Company had the following convertible preferred stock, par value of $0.0001 per share, authorized, and outstanding (in
thousands, except share and per share amounts):

As of December 31, 2020
Conversion
Per
Convertible Net Share to Liquidation
Preferred Shares Shares Carrying Common Per Share Liquidation
Stock Authorized Outstanding Value Stock Amount Amount

Series A 32,045,280 32,045,280 $ 11,925  $ 0.38 $ 038 $ 12,120
Series B* 24,677,332 24,677,332 23,740 1.13 1.13 28,000
Series C 82,414,075 59,575,253 137,475 2.42 2.42 144,432
Series D 618,720,748 539,769,493 1,311,548 2.33 3.64 1,963,912
Series E 301,092,345 301,092,346 1,009,388 2.99 4.48 1,349,449
Total 1,058,949,780 957,159,704  $ 2,494,076 $ 3,497,913

*As of December 31, 2020, 3,525,332 Series B convertible preferred stock at aggregate fair value of $3.0 million were extinguished and reclassified to
other accrued liabilities, with cash settlement occurring in January 2021.

The significant rights and preferences of the outstanding convertible preferred stock through the Closing of the Merger are as follows:

Dividends—Through the Closing Date, Holders of Series A, Series B, and Series C had been entitled to receive noncumulative dividends at an annual rate
of $0.03, $0.09, $0.19 per share, respectively. Holders of Series D and Series E had been entitled to receive noncumulative dividends at the rate of 8% of
the Series D and Series E Original Issue Price (as adjusted for any Stock Split Change) per annum on each outstanding share of Series D and Series E
through the Closing Date. Such dividends had been payable when and if declared by the Company’s board of directors (the “Board of Directors”). No other
dividends would have been paid on any common or convertible preferred stock until such dividends on Series A, Series B, Series C, Series D and Series E
had been paid or declared by the Board of Directors. Through the Closing Date, no dividends had been declared.

Liquidation Preference—Until the Closing Date, in the event of any liquidation, dissolution, or winding-up of the Company, whether voluntary or
involuntary (a Liquidation Event), before any distribution or payment would have been made to holders of common stock, each holder of convertible
preferred stock then outstanding would have been entitled to be paid, pro rata, out of the assets of the Company available for distribution to members,
whether from capital, surplus, or earnings, in the sequence of Series E, Series D, Series C, Series B and Series A, an amount equal to one and one-half
times (1.5x), one and one-half times (1.5x), one time (1x), one time (1x), one time (1x) of the Series E, Series D, Series C, Series B, and Series A original
issue price per share (as adjusted for Share Split Changes), plus all declared and unpaid distributions thereon.

Voting Rights—Until the Closing Date, the holders of Series A, Series B, Series C, Series D and Series E convertible preferred stock had been entitled to
the number of votes equal to the number of common stock into which such convertible preferred stock had been convertible, and with respect to such vote,
such holder had been to full voting rights and powers equal to the voting rights and powers of the holders of common stock, and had been entitled,
notwithstanding any provision hereof, to notice of any shareholders’ meeting in accordance with our bylaws. The holders of convertible preferred stock and
the holders of common stock had been entitled to vote together and not as separate classes.

Conversion—Until the Closing Date, each Series A, Series B, Series C, Series D and Series E convertible preferred stock had been convertible, at the
option of the holder, into one fully paid nonassessable common stock. The conversion formula had been adjusted for such events as dilutive issuances,
stock splits, or business combinations. Each share of Series A, Series B, Series C, Series D and Series E convertible preferred stock had been automatically
converted into one share of common stock at the applicable conversion price upon the earlier of (1) vote or written consent of the holders of at least 66.67%
of the outstanding Series A, Series B, Series C, Series D or 50% for Series E convertible preferred stock, as applicable (each calculated on an as-converted
basis), voting as a class, or (2) immediately before the closing of the Company’s sale of its common stock in a firm commitment underwritten public
offering on a U.S. national securities exchange or other internationally recognized securities exchange, which had been reflected a pre-offering market
capitalization in excess of $2.5 billion and which had resulted in gross proceeds to the Company of at least $200.0 million (before payment of underwriters’
discounts, commissions and offering expenses) (such transaction, a “Qualified IPO”).
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Antidilution Adjustment—Until the Closing Date, subject to certain exceptions, if the Company had issued additional common stock without consideration
or for a consideration per share, less than the conversion price with respect to such series of the convertible preferred stock in effect immediately before the
issuance of such additional shares, the conversion price of such series of convertible preferred stock in effect immediately before each such issuance had
been automatically adjusted. The new conversion price for such series of convertible preferred stock had been determined by multiplying the conversion
price for such series of convertible preferred stock then in effect by a fraction, the numerator of which had been the number of common stock outstanding
immediately before such issuance, plus the number of shares that the aggregate consideration received by the Company for such issuance would purchase
at such conversion price then in effect, and the denominator of which had been the number of common stock outstanding immediately before such
issuance, plus the number of such additional common stock to be issued.

NOTE 10 - STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Preferred Stock

The Company has authorized the issuance of 10,000,000 shares of undesignated preferred stock with a par value of $0.0001 per share with rights and
preferences, including voting rights, designated from time to time by the board of directors. As of September 30, 2021, there were no issued and
outstanding shares of preferred stock.

Common Stock

On July 23, 2021, in connection with the reverse recapitalization treatment of the Merger, the Company effectively issued 425,395,023 new shares of
common stock upon the Closing. The Company also converted all 1,155,909,367 shares of its issued and outstanding convertible preferred stock into
1,155,909,367 new shares of common stock as of the Closing of the Merger based upon the conversion rate as calculated pursuant to Legacy Lucid’s
memorandum and articles of association. Immediately following the Merger, there were 1,618,621,534 shares of common stock outstanding with a par
value of $0.0001. The holder of each share of common stock is entitled to one vote.

Common Stock Warrants

On July 23, 2021, in connection with the reverse recapitalization treatment of the Merger, the Company effectively issued 41,400,000 publicly-traded
warrants to purchase shares of its common stock. Each whole warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of the Company’s common stock at a price
of $11.50 per share. The public warrants were exercisable as of August 22, 2021 and expire on July 23, 2026, if not yet exercised by the holder or redeemed
by the Company.

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021, an aggregate of 32,082,532 public warrants were exercised, of which 17,015,311 were
exercised on a cashless basis. The aggregate cash proceeds received from the exercise of these public warrants were $173.3 million. A summary of activity
of the Company’s issued and outstanding public warrants is as follows:

September 30,
2021
Public warrants issued in connection with Merger on July 23, 2021 41,400,000
Number of public warrants exercised (32,082,532)
Issued and outstanding public warrants as of September 30, 2021 9,317,468

On September 8, 2021 the Company issued a redemption notice to the holders of the public warrants pursuant to which the Company would redeem any
remaining issued and outstanding warrants at a price of $0.01 per warrant at the scheduled redemption date. Upon the redemption notification, holders of
the public warrants only had the right to exercise their outstanding warrants prior to the scheduled redemption date on a cashless basis. On October 14,
2021, the Company extended the redemption date to October 29, 2021. Subsequent to September 30, 2021 and prior to the conclusion of the redemption
notice period on October 29, 2021, an aggregate of 8,951,665 public warrants were exercised on a cashless basis. At the conclusion of the redemption
notice period on October 29, 2021, the remaining 365,803 public warrants issued and outstanding were redeemed at price of $0.01 per warrant.
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Common Stock Reserved for Issuance

The Company’s common stock reserved for future issuances as of September 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, are as follows:

September 30, December 31,
2021 2020
Convertible preferred stock (on an as-converted basis) — 957,159,704
Convertible preferred stock warrant (on an as-converted basis) — 1,546,799
Private warrants to purchase common stock 44,350,000 —
Public warrants to purchase common stock 9,317,468 —
Stock options outstanding 67,013,622 70,675,318
Restricted stock units outstanding 43,183,277 —
Shares available for future grants under equity plans 12,894,374 10,526,235
Total shares of common stock reserved 176,758,741 1,039,908,056

NOTE 11 - EARNBACK SHARES AND WARRANTS

During the period between the Closing and the five-year anniversary of the Closing, the Churchill Sponsor has subjected the 17,250,000 Sponsor Earnback
Shares of issued and outstanding common stock and 14,783,333 Sponsor Earnback Warrants of issued and outstanding private warrants to potential
forfeiture to Lucid for no consideration until the occurrence of each tranche’s respective earnback triggering event. The 17,250,000 Sponsor Earnback
Shares are comprised of three separate tranches of 5,750,000 shares per tranche. The 14,783,333 Sponsor Earnback Warrants are comprised of three
separate tranches of (i) 4,927,778 warrants, (ii) 4,927,778 warrants, and (iii) 4,927,777 warrants. The earnback triggering events for the three respective
tranches of the Sponsor Earnback Shares and Sponsor Earnback Warrants will be met upon the earlier of (i) the date on which the volume-weighted average
trading sale price of one share of our common stock quoted on Nasdaq is greater than or equal to $20.00, $25.00, and $30.00, respectively, for any 40
trading days within any 60 consecutive trading day period or (ii) a change in control of Lucid pursuant to which stockholders of Lucid have the right to
receive consideration implying a value per share greater than or equal to $20.00, $25.00, and $30.00, respectively.

The earnback triggering events were determined to be indexed to the Company’s common stock as the earnback triggering events are measured on a
dilutive basis.

The first earnback triggering event related to achieving a volume-weighted average trading sale price greater than or equal to $20.00 for any 40 trading
days within any 60 consecutive trading day period was satisfied on September 29, 2021. As a result, the first tranche of the Sponsor Earnback Shares and
Sponsor Earnback Warrants, or 5,750,000 shares of common stock and 4,927,778 private warrants respectively, were vested and no longer subject to the
transfer restrictions and contingent forfeiture provisions.

NOTE 12 - STOCK-BASED AWARDS
Legacy Lucid 2021 Stock Incentive Plan
In January 2021, the Company’s board of directors adopted and the stockholders approved the 2021 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2021 Plan”). The 2021 Plan
replaced the Company’s 2014 Plan. The 10,526,235 shares reserved for future issuance under the 2014 Plan were removed and added to the share reserve

under the 2021 Plan. The 2021 Plan provided for the grant of incentive stock options, non-statutory stock options, restricted shares, restricted stock units
(“RSU”), share appreciation rights, performance based awards and cash based awards to the Company’s employees, directors, and consultants.
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Lucid 2021 Stock Incentive Plan and ESPP Addendum

In July 2021, the Company’s board of directors adopted and the stockholders approved the 2021 Incentive Plan (the “2021 Incentive Plan”), which includes
an employee stock purchase plan as an addendum (the “ESPP Addendum”). The 2021 Incentive Plan replaced the 2021 Plan. The 2021 Incentive Plan
provides for the grant of restricted shares, non-qualified stock options, incentive stock options, unrestricted shares, stock appreciation rights, restricted
stock units and cash awards. Shares of common stock underlying awards that are forfeited or cancelled generally are returned to the pool of shares available
for issuance under the 2021 Incentive Plan.

The ESPP Addendum authorizes the issuance of shares of common stock pursuant to purchase rights granted to employees. The purchase price for each
share purchased during an offering period will be the lesser of 85% of the fair market value of the share on the purchase date or 85% of the fair market
value of the share on the offering date. The offering dates and purchase dates for the ESPP Addendum are determined at the discretion of the Company’s
board of directors. As of September 30, 2021, the Company had not yet launched its ESPP Addendum.

The number of shares of common stock that remain available for issuance under the 2021 Incentive Plan, including the ESPP Addendum, was 12,894,374
as of September 30, 2021.

Stock Options
The Company’s outstanding stock options generally expire 10 years from the date of grant and are exercisable when the options vest. Incentive stock
options and non-statutory options generally vest over four years, the majority of which vest at a rate of 25% on the first anniversary of the grant date, with

the remainder vesting ratably each month over the next three years. A summary of stock option activity is as follows:

Outstanding Options

Weighted-
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Intrinsic
Number of Exercise Contractual Value
Options Price Term (in thousands)
Balance—December 31, 2020 70,675,318 $ 0.84 7.8 $ 647,218
Options granted 8,402,925 2.85
Options exercised (8,966,272) 0.69
Options canceled (3,098,349) 1.68
Balance—September 30, 2021 67,013,622 $ 1.07 68 $ 1,628,923
Options vested and exercisable September 30, 2021 T 41,932,824 $ 0.75 57 $ 1,032,660

Aggregate intrinsic value represents the difference between the exercise price of the options and the fair value of common shares. The aggregate intrinsic
value of options exercised was approximately $152.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2021, and $3.4 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2020.

The total fair value of stock options granted during the nine months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, was approximately $24.0 million and $16.1
million, respectively, which is recognized over the respective vesting periods. The total fair value of stock options vested during the nine months ended
September 30, 2021 and 2020, was approximately $4.7 million and $3.1 million, respectively.

The Company estimates the fair value of the options utilizing the Black-Scholes option pricing model, which is dependent upon several variables, including
expected option term, expected volatility of the Company’s share price over the expected term, expected risk-free interest rate over the expected option
term, and expected dividend yield rate over the expected option term, and actual forfeiture rates. A summary of the assumptions the Company utilized to
record compensation expense for stock options granted during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, is as follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2021 2020 2021 2020
Weighted average volatility —% 50.4% 41.9% 65.2%
Expected term (in years) 0.0 5.8 5.9 5.9
Risk-free interest rate —% 1.6% 0.6% 0.9%
Expected dividends $ — $ — $ — $ —
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Restricted Stock Unit
A summary of RSU award activity is as follows:

Restricted Stock Units

Performance- Weighted-Average
Time-Based Based Grant-Date Fair
Shares Shares Total Shares Value
Nonvested balance as of December 31, 2020 — — — $ —
Granted 27,500,001 16,024,411 43,524,412 19.41
Cancelled/Forfeited (341,135) — (341,135) 22.79
Nonvested balance as of September 30, 2021 27,158,866 16,024,411 43,183,277 $ 19.38

Time-based RSUs vest based on a performance condition and a service condition. The performance condition was satisfied upon the Closing of the Merger,
and the service condition will be met generally over 4.0 years. The Company granted 13,834,748 shares of the time-based RSUs to the CEO that will vest
in sixteen equal quarterly installments beginning on December 5, 2021, subject to continuous employment. The service condition for 25% of the
Company’s non-CEO RSUs will be satisfied 375 days after the Closing. The remaining RSUs will be satisfied in equal quarterly installments thereafter,
subject to continuous employment. The fair value of these time-based RSUs was measured using the fair value of the Company’s common stock on the date
of the grant, as based on the market price of Churchill’s stock adjusted for the expected exchange ratio at the time, and discounted for lack of marketability.

All performance-based RSUs are granted to the CEO. The CEO performance RSUs will vest subject to the performance and market conditions. The
performance condition was satisfied upon the Closing. The market conditions will be satisfied and vest in five tranches based on the achievement of market
capitalization goals applicable to each tranche over a six-month period subject to the CEO’s continuous employment through the applicable vesting date.
Any CEO performance RSUs that have not vested within five years after the Closing will be forfeited. As of September 30, 2021, none of the market
capitalization goals had been achieved. The fair value of these performance-based RSUs was measured on the grant date, March 27, 2021, using a Monte
Carlo simulation model, with the following assumptions:

Weighted average volatility 60.0%
Expected term (in years) 5.0
Risk-free interest rate 0.9%
Expected dividends —

The Company recognizes compensation expense on a graded vesting schedule over the requisite vesting period for the time-based awards and over the
derived service period for the CEO performance RSUs. Stock-based compensation expense is recognized when the relevant performance condition is
considered probable of achievement for the performance-based award.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

Total employee and nonemployee stock-based compensation expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, is classified in the
consolidated statements of operations as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2021 2020 2021 2020
Research and development $ 59,196 $ 679 $ 85,899 $ 2,072
Selling, general and administrative 177,760 597 280,301 1,185
Total $ 236,956 $ 1,276  $ 366,200 $ 3,257

Total stock-based compensation expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021 includes $235.6 million stock-based compensation
expense related to the RSUs. The nine months ended September 30, 2021 also includes $123.6 million stock-based compensation expense related to the
Series E convertible preferred stock issuances in March 2021 and April 2021. Refer to Note 6 “Contingent Forward Contracts” and Note 9 “Convertible
Preferred Stock” for more information.
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The unamortized share-based compensation related to awards that are not vested was $732.2 million as of September 30, 2021, and weighted average
remaining amortization period as of September 30, 2021 was 2.7 years.

NOTE 13 - LEASES

The Company has entered into various non-cancellable operating and finance lease agreements for certain of the Company’s offices, manufacturing and
warehouse facilities, retail and service locations, equipment, vehicles, and solar energy systems, worldwide. The Company has determined if an
arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, including embedded leases, at inception and records the leases in the Company’s financial statements upon later
of ASC 842 adoption date of January 1, 2021, or lease commencement, which is the date when the underlying asset is made available for use by the lessor.

Lease expense for operating lease payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Our assessed lease terms may include options to
extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that we will exercise that option. Certain operating leases provide for annual increases to lease
payments based on an index or rate. The Company estimates the annual increase in lease payments based on the index or rate at the lease commencement
date, for both the Company’s historical leases and for new leases commencing after January 1, 2021. Differences between the estimated lease payment and
actual payment are expensed as incurred. Lease expense for finance lease payments is recognized as amortization expense of the finance lease ROU asset
and interest expense on the finance lease liability over the lease term.

The balances for the operating and finance leases where the Company is the lessee are presented as follows within the Company’s consolidated balance
sheet (in thousands):

As of September 30, 2021

Operating leases:

Operating lease right-of-use assets $ 143,782

Other current liabilities $ 14,611

Other long-term liabilities 169,433

Total operating lease liabilities $ 184,044
Finance leases:

Property, plant and equipment, net 7,825

Total finance lease assets $ 7,825

Finance lease liabilities, current portion $ 3,268

Finance lease liabilities, net of current portion 4,687

Total finance lease liabilities $ 7,955

The components of lease expense are as follows within the Company’s consolidated statement of operations (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, 2021 September 30, 2021

Operating lease expense:

Operating lease expense(l) $ 8,261 $ 21,811

Variable lease expense 595 1,754
Finance lease expense:

Amortization of leased assets $ 800 $ 2,032

Interest on lease liabilities 115 328

Total finance lease expense $ 915 $ 2,360
Total lease expense $ 9,771  $ 25,925

(1) Includes short-term leases, which are immaterial.
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Other information related to leases where the Company is the lessee is as follows:

As of September 30,
2021
Weighted-average remaining lease term (in years):
Operating leases 7.9
Finance leases 2.4
Weighted-average discount rate:
Operating leases 11.20%
Finance leases 6.10%
Supplemental cash flow information related to leases where the Company is the lessee is as follows (in thousands):
Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2021
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:
Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 4,516
Operating cash flows from finance leases (interest payments) 328
Financing cash flows from finance leases 1,915
Leased assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease liabilities 61,497
Leased assets obtained in exchange for new finance lease liabilities 70,756

As of September 30, 2021, the maturities of the Company’s operating and finance lease liabilities (excluding short-term leases) were as follows (in
thousands):

Operating Leases  Finance Leases

Three months ending September 30, 2021 $ 8,969 $ 939
2022 35,539 3,586
2023 35,043 3,234
2024 35,400 769
2025 34,484 —
Thereafter 132,938 —
Total minimum lease payments 282,373 8,528
Less: Interest (98,329) (573)
Present value of lease obligations 184,044 7,955
Less: Current portion 14,611 3,268
Long-term portion of lease obligations $ 169,433 $ 4,687

As previously reported in the Company’s audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020 and under legacy lease accounting (ASC 840),
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases as of December 31, 2020 are as follows (in thousands):

Operating Leases Finance Leases
2021 $ 25490 $ 1,729
2022 28,837 1,547
2023 27,633 1,174
2024 28,207 9
2025 27,474 —
Thereafter 116,155 —
Total minimum lease payments $ 253,796 4,459
Less: Interest (1,202)
Present value of lease obligations 3,257
Less: Current portion (1,261)
Long-term portion of lease obligations 1,996
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NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Contractual Obligations

As of September 30, 2021, and December 31, 2020, the Company had $363.0 million and $406.1 million in commitments related to the Arizona
manufacturing plant and equipment. This represents future expected payments on open purchase orders entered into as of September 30, 2021, and
December 31, 2020.

The Company entered into a non-cancellable purchase commitment to purchase battery cells over the next 3 years with various vendors. Battery cell costs
can fluctuate from time to time based on, among other things, supply and demand, costs of raw materials, and purchase volumes. The estimated purchase
commitment as of September 30, 2021 is as follows (in thousands):

Minimum

Purchase
Years ended December 31, Commitment
2021 (remainder of the year) $ 104,370
2022 202,400
2023 202,400
Total $ 509,170

In recognition of the CEQ’s efforts on the Merger, the board of directors approved a $2 million transaction bonus payable to the CEO subject to certain
conditions. The transaction bonus was paid to the CEO during the three months ended September 30, 2021.

Legal Matters

From time to time, the Company may be involved in litigation relating to claims arising out of the Company’s operations in the normal course of business.
Management is not currently aware of any matters that could have a material adverse effect on the financial position, results of operations, or cash flows of
the Company. However, the Company may be subject to various legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of its business activities.
There is no material pending or threatened litigation against the Company that remains outstanding as of September 30, 2021.

Indemnification

In the ordinary course of business, the Company may provide indemnification of varying scope and terms to customers, vendors, investors, directors, and
officers with respect to certain matters, including, but not limited to, losses arising out of our breach of such agreements, services to be provided by the
Company, or from intellectual property infringement claims made by third parties. These indemnification provisions may survive termination of the
underlying agreement and the maximum potential amount of future payments the Company could be required to make under these indemnification
provisions may not be subject to maximum loss clauses. The maximum potential amount of future payments the Company could be required to make under
these indemnification provisions is indeterminable. The Company has never paid a material claim, nor has it been sued in connection with these
indemnification arrangements. The Company has indemnification obligations with respect to letters of credit and surety bond primarily used as security
against facility leases and utilities infrastructure in the amount of $29.9 million and $15.5 million as of September 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020,
respectively, for which no liabilities are recorded on the condensed consolidated balance sheets.

NOTE 15 - INCOME TAXES

The Company's provision from income taxes for interim periods is determined using an estimate of its annual effective tax rate, adjusted for discrete items,
if any, that arise during the period. Each quarter, the Company updates its estimate of the annual effective tax rate, and if the estimated annual effective tax
rate changes, the Company makes a cumulative adjustment in such period.

The Company's quarterly tax provision, and estimate of its annual effective tax rate, is subject to variation due to several factors, including variability in
pre-tax income (or loss), the mix of jurisdictions to which such income relates, changes in how the Company does business, and tax law developments. The
Company's estimated effective tax rate for the year differs from the U.S. statutory rate of 21% because the entity is in a year-to-date and forecasted loss
position; therefore, any taxes reported are due to foreign income taxes and state minimum taxes.
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The Company recorded an income tax provision of $0.0 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021, as compared to an income tax
benefit of $0.1 million and $0.2 million for the same periods in the prior year. This resulted in an effective tax rate of 0.0% for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2021, and the same periods prior year.

As of September 30, 2021, and December 31, 2020, the Company had unrecognized tax benefits of $65.6 million and $42.9 million, of which $2.6 million,
if recognized for both periods, would favorably impact the Company's effective tax rate. The Company does not anticipate a material change in its
unrecognized tax benefits in the next 12 months.

On June 29, 2020, the California governor signed into law the 2020 Budget Act, which temporarily suspends the utilization of net operating losses and
limits the utilization of the research credit to $5.0 million annually for 2020, 2021 and 2022. The Company is continuing to assess the 2020 Budget Act, but
currently does not expect any material impact to the condensed consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 16 - NET LOSS PER SHARE

The weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding prior to the Merger have been retroactively adjusted by the Exchange Ratio to give
effect to the reverse recapitalization treatment of the Merger. Shares of common stock issued as a result of the conversion of Legacy Lucid convertible

preferred stock in connection with the Closing have been included in the basic net loss per share calculation on a prospective basis.

Basic and diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders are calculated as follows (in thousands, except share and per share amounts):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2021 2020 2021 2020
Net loss $ (524,403) $ (161,237) $ (1,534,081) $ (408,105)
Deemed dividend related to the issuance of Series E convertible preferred
stock — — (2,167,332) —
Net loss attributable to common stockholders $ (524,403) $ (161,237) $ (3,701,413) $ (408,105)
Weighted-average shares outstanding—basic and diluted 1,217,032,285 24,279,817 432,654,607 20,889,062
Net loss per share:
Basic and diluted $ (0.43) $ (6.64) $ 856) $ (19.54)

The following outstanding shares of potentially dilutive securities were excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per share attributable to common
stockholders because including them would have had an anti-dilutive effect:

Excluded Securities September 30, 2021 September 30, 2020
Convertible preferred stock (on an as-converted basis) — 825,191,683
Convertible preferred stock warrants (on an as-converted basis) — 1,546,799
Private warrants to purchase common stock 34,494,445 —
Public warrants to purchase common stock 9,317,468 —
Options outstanding to purchase common stock 67,013,622 65,641,710
RSUs outstanding 27,158,866 —
Total 137,984,401 892,380,192
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The 11,500,000 shares and 9,855,555 shares of common stock equivalents subject to the remaining Sponsor Earnback Shares and Sponsor Earnback
Warrants, respectively, are excluded from the anti-dilutive table above as of September 30, 2021 as the underlying shares remain contingently issuable as
the earnback triggering events have not been satisfied. The 16,024,411 shares of common stock equivalents subject to RSUs are also excluded from the
anti-dilutive table above as of September 30, 2021 as the underlying shares also remain contingently issuable since the market conditions have not been
satisfied.

NOTE 17 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Company has a 401(k) savings plan (the “401(k) Plan”) that qualifies as a deferred salary arrangement under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code. Under the 401(k) Plan, participating employees may elect to contribute up to 100% of their eligible compensation, subject to certain limitations. The
401(k) Plan provides for a discretionary employer-matching contribution. The Company made no matching contribution to the 401(k) Plan for the nine
months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020.

NOTE 18 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Public Investment Fund Internship Agreement

In July 2021, we entered into an agreement with PIF, the parent entity of Ayar, our majority stockholder, to implement a recruitment and talent development
program pursuant to which we agreed to evaluate, employ and train participants nominated by PIF during six-month internships, and PIF agreed to
reimburse us for expenses related to participant wages, visa fees, medical insurance, airfare and housing incurred by us. We expect to be reimbursed by PIF
in an aggregate of $1 million in 2022 for such expenses. No reimbursement was received through September 30, 2021.

NOTE 19 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In connection with the preparation of the condensed consolidated financial statements for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021, the
Company evaluated subsequent events and concluded there were no subsequent events that required recognition in the condensed consolidated financial
statements.

On September 8, 2021, the Company announced that it would redeem (the “Redemption”) all of its public warrants that remained outstanding on
October 8, 2021 (the “Initial Redemption Date”), for a redemption price of $0.01 per public warrant (the “Redemption Price”). In connection with the
Redemption, the Company elected to require that any exercises of public warrants be made on a “cashless” basis, entitling each warrant holder to receive
0.4458 of a share of the Company’s common stock for each public warrant surrendered for exercise. Pursuant to the terms of the public warrants, any
public warrants that were not exercised prior to the Initial Redemption Date were reduced to the right to receive the Redemption Price.

On October 13, 2021, the public warrants were delisted from The Nasdaq Stock Market (“Nasdaq”).

On October 14, 2021, the Company extended the redemption date of its public warrants to October 29, 2021. Subsequent to September 30, 2021 and prior
to the conclusion of the redemption notice period on October 29, 2021, an aggregate of 8,951,665 public warrants were exercised on a cashless basis. At the
conclusion of the redemption notice period on October 29, 2021, the remaining 365,803 public warrants issued and outstanding were redeemed at price of
$0.01 per warrant.

In October 2021, the Company repurchased an aggregate of 857,825 shares of its common stock from certain individuals (the “Individual Sellers”) who
were directors and employees of the Company’s predecessor, Atieva, Inc. (“Atieva”) (such transactions, the “Repurchases”). The repurchase price was
$24.15 per share, which was equal to the average closing price of the Company’s common stock on the Nasdaq Global Select Market for the three trading
day period ending on and including October 6, 2021, the second trading day prior to the date of the Repurchases. The Repurchases were effected solely to
allow the Individual Sellers to satisfy certain tax obligations (including tax withholding obligations of the Company) incurred in connection with such
Individual Sellers’ purchase of shares of Series E Preferred Stock from Atieva on April 2, 2021. The Company applied the proceeds received from the
repurchases to the applicable U.S. tax authorities to satisfy tax obligations. The Company is accounting for the repurchased shares as treasury stock.

The Individual Sellers include Peter Rawlinson, a director of the Company and the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Technology Officer, from
whom the Company repurchased 178,796 shares; Eric Bach, the Company’s Senior Vice President, Product and Chief Engineer, from whom the Company
repurchased 195,557 shares; Michael Bell, the Company’s Senior Vice President, Digital, from whom the Company repurchased 33,526 shares; and Tony
Posawatz, a director of the Company, from whom the Company repurchased 14,511 shares.
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In October 2021, the Company entered into a purchase commitment with a vendor to purchase battery cells over the next 8 years pursuant to which the
Company will need to make non-cancellable prepayments in five installments for a total aggregate amount of $148.0 million.

In October 2021, the Company entered into new retail lease agreements for various locations. The leases commenced in October 2021 and will expire on or
before May 2029. Under the lease agreements, the Company will pay base rent from $0.3 million to $0.6 million annually.

In late October 2021, reservation holders of Lucid Air Dream Edition models began receiving their vehicles, with customer deliveries ramping up
thereafter.

In early November 2021, enrollment began in the Lucid Group, Inc. 2021 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
In November 2021, our compensation committee approved the payment of annual cash bonuses for 2021 to certain executive officers in view of the
successful achievement of the start of production and start of customer deliveries of the Lucid Air, as well as their respective contributions to the

Company’s overall success in 2021, as follows: Mr. Rawlinson will receive $400,000, Mr. Bach will receive $282,000, Ms. House will receive $166,000
Mr. Bell will receive $268,000, and Mr. Smuts will receive $81,000.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis provides information that Lucid management believes is relevant to an assessment and understanding of Lucid’s
consolidated results of operations and financial condition as of September 30, 2021 and for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021. The
discussion should be read together with the consolidated financial statements for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, the
related notes that are included elsewhere in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q (this “Quarterly Report”), and the final prospectus and definitive proxy
statement (the “Proxy Statement/Prospectus™) filed on June 25, 2021 with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) pursuant to
Rule 424(b) under the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”), as amended. This discussion may contain forward-looking statements based upon
Lucid’s current expectations, estimates and projections that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those
anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including those set forth under “Risk Factors” in Part II, Item 1A of this
Quarterly Report.

Overview

We are a technology and automotive company with a mission to inspire the adoption of sustainable transportation by creating the most captivating luxury
electric vehicles centered around human experience. Our focus on in-house technological innovation and a “clean sheet” approach to engineering and
design have led to the development of our groundbreaking electric vehicle, the Lucid Air, which has gone into production.

The Lucid Air is a luxury electric sedan that redefines both the luxury car segment and the electric vehicle space. Through miniaturization of the key drive-
train components, the Lucid Air is designed to deliver compelling performance and interior space with an exterior that is reminiscent of a high-performance
sports car. We believe our drivetrain and battery pack technologies are significant differentiators and our battery technology has been driven more than
twenty million real-world miles since Lucid’s inception. With our 900V+ electrical architecture, we expect that some variants of the Lucid Air will be able
to achieve sufficient charge in approximately 20 minutes to travel 300 miles and have travel range in excess of 500 miles on a single charge. The Lucid Air
is expected to be available in a variant with over 1,000 horsepower and the ability to travel from zero to 60 miles per hour in less than 2.5 seconds. We are
also the supplier of battery technology for the premier EV racing series. We believe the Lucid Air will establish the bar for excellence across future Lucid
products and experiences by fusing art and science to capture the potential of electrification.

The Lucid Air is manufactured in-house at our greenfield purpose-built electric vehicle manufacturing facilities in Casa Grande, Arizona, named Advanced
Manufacturing Plant-1 (“AMP-1") and Lucid Powertrain Manufacturing Plant (“LPM-1"). Upon completion of our facilities, our manufacturing footprint in
Casa Grande is expected to exceed 5 million square feet on 495 acres. Our AMP-1 facility is designed with an initial output capacity to produce up to
34,000 vehicles annually. We started our production of the Lucid Air utilizing our AMP-1 facility in September. In late October 2021, reservation holders
of Lucid Air Dream Edition models began receiving their vehicles, with customer deliveries ramping up thereafter.

We expect to launch additional vehicles over the coming decade. We have already commenced engineering and design work for Project Gravity, a luxury
SUV that is expected to leverage the same platform and many of the technological advancements developed for the Lucid Air. We expect to begin
production of Project Gravity at the end of 2023. After the Lucid Air and Project Gravity, we plan to leverage our technological and manufacturing
advancements to develop and manufacture progressively more affordable vehicles in higher volumes. We further believe that our battery systems expertise
positions us to produce compelling stationary energy storage system (“ESS”) products. ESS is a technologically adjacent opportunity which can leverage
the modular design of our battery packs and our extensive experience with battery pack and battery management systems.

We plan to sell our vehicles directly to consumers through both our retail store or gallery locations, which we refer to as “Studios,” and our online
purchasing platform as we believe the direct-to-consumer sales model reflects today’s changing customer preferences. We believe that our direct-to-
consumer sales model, combined with a digitally enhanced luxury experience through our website and a refined in-store experience, creates opportunities
to tailor to each customer’s purchase and ownership preferences. As of September 30, 2021, we have opened nine retail stores and expect additional stores
and service centers to open in North America throughout 2021. We believe in owning our sales and service network in order to control our customers’
experience throughout their journey with us. We are also in the process of establishing an in-house service footprint through brick-and-mortar service
centers in various geographies and a planned mobile service fleet. In order to deliver excellent in-house and mobile services to our customers, we also plan
to have an approved list of vetted and specially trained body shop technicians.
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Our revenue to date has been generated primarily from the sales of battery pack systems, supplies and related services. Through September 30, 2021, we
had not sold any vehicles. We began commercial sales of Lucid Air Dream Edition in late October 2021. We incurred net losses of $524.4 million and
$161.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, $1.5 billion and $408.1 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and $719.4 million and $277.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. We
expect to incur significant net losses for the foreseeable future. We plan to make significant investments in capital expenditures to build and expand our
manufacturing, sales and service facilities, hire a commercial sales team, and continue to invest in research and development. We expect that our existing
cash and cash equivalents will be sufficient to meet our capital expenditure and working capital requirements for a period of at least twelve months from
the date of this Report.

Recent Developments
Closing of the Merger

On the Closing Date, Churchill and Lucid consummated the Merger. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Lucid became a wholly owned subsidiary of
Churchill and Churchill was immediately renamed “Lucid Group, Inc.” Upon the consummation of the Merger in connection with the Merger Agreement,
all holders of 451,295,965 issued and outstanding Legacy Lucid common stock received shares of Lucid common stock at a deemed value of $10.00 per
share after giving effect to the exchange ratio of 2.644 (the “Exchange Ratio”) resulting in 1,193,226,511 shares of Lucid common stock issued and
outstanding as of the Closing and all holders of 42,182,931 issued and outstanding Legacy Lucid equity awards received Lucid equity awards covering
111,531,080 shares of Lucid common stock at a deemed value of $10.00 per share after giving effect to the Exchange Ratio.

The Merger has been accounted for as a reverse recapitalization under U.S. GAAP. Under this method of accounting, Churchill has been treated as the
acquired company for financial reporting purposes. The reverse recapitalization accounting treatment was primarily determined based on the stockholders
of Legacy Lucid having a relative majority of the voting power of Lucid and having the ability to nominate the majority of the members of the Lucid board
of directors, senior management of Legacy Lucid comprise the senior management of Lucid, and the strategy and operations of Legacy Lucid prior to the
Merger comprise the only ongoing strategy and operations of Lucid. Accordingly, for accounting purposes, the financial statements of Lucid represent a
continuation of the financial statements of Legacy Lucid with the Merger being treated as the equivalent of Legacy Lucid issuing shares for the net assets
of Churchill, accompanied by a recapitalization. The net assets of Churchill were recognized as of the Closing at historical cost, with no goodwill or other
intangible assets recorded. Operations prior to the Merger are presented as those of Legacy Lucid and the accumulated deficit of Legacy Lucid has been
carried forward after Closing.

All periods prior to the Merger have been retrospectively adjusted using the Exchange Ratio for the equivalent number of shares outstanding immediately
after the Closing to effect the reverse recapitalization.

In connection with the Closing, the Company raised $4,439.2 million of gross proceeds, including the contribution of $2,070.1 million of cash held in
Churchill’s trust account from its initial public offering along with $2,500.0 million of cash raised by Churchill in connection with the PIPE Investment and
$0.4 million of cash held in the Churchill operating cash account. The gross proceeds were net of $0.2 million paid to redeem 21,644 shares of Churchill
Class A common stock held by public stockholders and $131.4 million in costs incurred by Churchill prior to the Closing. The Company additionally
incurred $38.9 million of transaction costs, consisting of banking, legal, and other professional fees, of which $36.2 million was recorded as a reduction to
additional paid-in capital of proceeds and the remaining $2.7 million was expensed in the condensed consolidated statements of operations. The total net
cash proceeds to the Company were $4,400.3 million. We intend to use the net proceeds for future capacity expansion, general corporate purposes and to
meet our working capital needs.

See Note 1 - Description of Business and Note 3 - Reverse Recapitalization in our unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements included
elsewhere in this Quarterly Report for more information.
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Key Factors Affecting Our Performance

We believe that our future success and financial performance depend on a number of factors that present significant opportunities for our business, but also
pose risks and challenges, including those discussed below and in the section entitled “Risk Factors” in Part II, Item 1A of this Quarterly Report.

Design and Technology Leadership

We believe that we are positioned to be a leader in the electric vehicle market by unlocking the potential for advanced, high-performance, and long-range
electric vehicles to co-exist. The Lucid Air is designed with race-proven battery pack technologies and robust performance together with a sleek exterior
design and expansive interior space given our miniaturized key drivetrain components. We anticipate consumer demand for the Lucid Air based on its
luxurious design, high-performance technology and sustainability leadership, and the growing acceptance of and demand for electric vehicles as a
substitute for gasoline-fueled vehicles. We have received significant interest in the Lucid Air from potential customers. Through September 30, 2021, we
have refundable reservations that reflect potential sales greater than $1,300.0 million.

Direct-to-Consumer Model

We plan to operate a direct-to-consumer sales and service model, which we believe will allow us to offer a personalized experience for our customers based
on their purchase and ownership preferences. We expect to incur significant expenses in our sales and marketing operations as we prepare for
commercialization of the Lucid Air, including to open Studios, hire a sales force, invest in marketing and brand awareness, and stand up a service center
operation. As of September 30, 2021, we had opened nine Studios, four locations in California, two locations in Florida, one location in New York, one
location in Illinois and one location in Arizona. By the end of 2021, we expect to open additional Studios and service centers in North America. We also
intend to hire additional sales, customer service, and service centers personnel. We believe that investing in our direct-to-consumer sales and service model
will be critical to deliver and service the Lucid electric vehicles we plan to manufacture and sell.

Establishing Manufacturing Capacity

Achieving commercialization and growth for each generation of electric vehicles requires us to make significant capital expenditures to scale our
production capacity and improve our supply chain processes in the United States and internationally. We expect our capital expenditures to increase each
year through 2023 as we continue our phased construction of our AMP-1 and LPM-1 facilities and international expansion and then to decrease in the
subsequent years. The amount and timing of our future manufacturing capacity requirements, and resulting capital expenditures, will depend on many
factors, including the pace and results of our research and development efforts to meet technological development milestones, our ability to develop and
launch new electric vehicles, our ability to achieve sales and experience customer demand for our vehicles at the levels we anticipate, our ability to utilize
planned capacity in our existing facilities and our ability to enter new markets.

Technology Innovation
We develop in-house battery and powertrain technology, which requires us to invest a significant amount of capital in research and development. The
electric vehicle market is highly competitive and includes both established automotive manufacturers and new entrants. To establish market share and

attract customers from competitors, we plan to continue to make substantial investments in research and development for the commercialization and
continued enhancements of the Lucid Air, the development of Project Gravity, and future generations of our electric vehicles and other products.
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Results of Operations

The following tables set forth our results of operations for the periods presented (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2021 2020 $ change % change 2021 2020 $ change % change
Revenue $ 232 $ 334 $ (102) B1)% $ 719 $ 342§ 377 110%
Cost of revenue 3,320 609 2,711 445% 3,424 550 2,874 523%
Gross loss (3,088) (275) (2,813) *nm (2,705) (208) (2,497) *nm
Operating expenses
Research and development(1) 242,408 133,890 108,518 81% 586,579 341,589 244,990 72%
Selling, general and administrative(1) 251,554 27,935 223,619 800% 455,478 57,719 397,759 689%
Total operating expenses 493,962 161,825 332,137 205% 1,042,057 399,308 642,749 161%
Loss from operations (497,050) (162,100) (334,950) 207% (1,044,762) (399,516) (645,246) 162%
Other income (expense), net:
Change in fair value of forward contracts — — — *nm (454,546) (8,719) (445,827) *nm
Change in fair value of convertible preferred stock * -
warrant liability — (57) 57 nm (6,976) 171) (6,805) nm
Change in fair value of common stock warrant * *
liability (24,787) — (24,787) nm (24,787) — (24,787) nm
Transaction costs expensed (2,717) — (2,717) *nm (2,717) — (2,717) *nm
Interest expense (76) (10) (66) 660% (111) (20) 91) 455%
Other (expense) income, net 249 785 (536) (68)% (151) 76 (227) (299)%
Total other (expense) income, net (27,331) 718 (28,049) *nm (489,288) (8,834) (480,454) *nm
Loss before provision for (benefit from) income taxes (524,381) (161,382) (362,999) 225% (1,534,050) (408,350) (1,125,700) 276%
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes 22 (145) 167 *nm 31 (245) 276 *nm
Net loss and comprehensive loss $ (524403) $ (161,237) $ (363,166) 225% $ (1,534,081) $ (408,105) $ (1,125,976) 276%

*nm — not meaningful

(@ Includes stock-based compensation expense as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2021 2020 $ change % change 2021 2020 $ change % change
Research and development $ 59,19 $ 679 $ 58517 *nm $ 8589 $ 2072 $ 83,827 *nm
Selling, general and administrative 177,760 597 177,163 *nm 280,301 1,185 279,116 *nm
Total $ 236,956 $ 1,276 $ 235,680 *nm $ 366,200 $ 3257  $ 362,943 *nm

*nm — not meaningful
Revenue

To date, we have primarily generated revenue from the sales of battery pack systems, supplies and related services for vehicles to a single customer. We
have identified the sale of battery pack systems and the related supplies as a performance obligation to be recognized at the point in time when control is
transferred to the customer. While our customer generally has the right to return defective or non-conforming products, product returns have been
immaterial in past periods. We do not expect the sales from the battery pack systems for the world’s premier electric racing series to be material for the go-
forward commercialized business.

Revenue decreased by $0.1 million, or 31%, for the three months ended September 30, 2021 as compared to the same period in the prior year. The decrease
is attributable to a decrease in sales of our battery pack systems and supplies for vehicles.

Revenue increased by $0.4 million, or over 100%, for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 as compared to the same period in the prior year. The
increase is attributable to an increase in sales of our battery pack systems and supplies for vehicles.
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Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue related to battery pack systems, supplies and related services for electric vehicles primarily consists of direct parts and materials, shipping
and handling costs, headcount related costs, such as salaries and related personnel expenses, including stock-based compensation, and estimated warranty
expenses related to battery pack systems. Cost of revenue also includes allocated overhead costs such as depreciation of manufacturing related equipment
and facilities, amortization of capitalized internal-use software, facilities, and information technology costs.

We have commenced commercial production of the Lucid Air, and we expect to capitalize the cost to manufacture vehicles and expense these capitalized
inventory costs in the fourth quarter of 2021 when the vehicles are sold within cost of revenue. We have not capitalized any vehicle manufacturing costs to
date.

Cost of revenue increased by $2.7 million, or over 100% for the three months ended September 30, 2021 as compared to the same period in the prior year.
The increase was due to cost incurred during the early stage of production that began during the quarter. Gross loss increased by $2.8 million, or over
100%, and gross margin decreased by over 100% primarily due to an increase in cost of revenue in the current period.

Cost of revenue increased by $2.9 million, or over 100%, for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 as compared to the same period in the prior year.
The increase was due to cost incurred during the early stage of production that began during the quarter. Gross loss increased by $2.5 million, or over
100%, and gross margin decreased by over 100% primarily due to an increase in cost of revenue for the nine months period.

Operating Expenses
Our operating expenses consist of research and development and selling, general and administrative expenses.
Research and Development

Our research and development efforts have primarily focused on the development of our battery and powertrain technology, the Lucid Air, Project Gravity
and future generations of our electric vehicles. Research and development expenses consist primarily of materials, supplies and personnel-related expenses
for employees involved in the engineering, designing, and testing of electric vehicles. Personnel-related expenses primarily include salaries, benefits and
stock-based compensation. Research and development expenses also include professional services fees, allocated facilities costs, such as office and rent
expense and depreciation expense, and other engineering, designing, and testing expenses.

Research and development expense increased by $108.5 million, or 81%, for the three months ended September 30, 2021 as compared to the same period
in the prior year. The increase was primarily attributable to increases in personnel-related expenses of $100.4 million due to growth in headcount and stock-
based compensation expense of $58.5 million recognized in relation to the RSUs. Additionally, we incurred increase in other allocated overhead expense of
$8.6 million primarily related to additional facilities needed to scale our business.

Research and development expense increased by $245.0 million, or 72%, for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 as compared to the same period in
the prior year. The increase was primarily attributable to increases in personnel-related expenses of $194.4 due to growth in headcount and stock-based
compensation expense of $83.8 million recognized in relation to the RSUs and the fourth closing of the Legacy Lucid Series E preferred stock issuance.
Additionally, we incurred increases in office and rent expense of $21.5 million and other allocated overhead expenses of $18.3 million primarily related to
additional facilities needed to scale our business.

Selling, General, and Administrative

Selling, general, and administrative expenses consist primarily of personnel-related expenses for employees involved in general corporate, selling and
marketing functions, including executive management and administration, legal, human resources, accounting, finance, tax, and information technology.
Personnel-related expenses primarily include salaries, benefits and share-based compensation. Selling, general, and administrative expenses also include
allocated facilities costs, such as office, rent and depreciation expenses, professional services fees and other general corporate expenses. As we continue to
grow as a company, build out our sales force, and commercialize the Lucid Air and planned future generations of our electric vehicles, we expect that our
selling, general and administrative costs will increase.
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We also expect to incur additional expenses as a result of operating as a public company, including expenses necessary to comply with the rules and
regulations applicable to companies listed on a national securities exchange and related to compliance and reporting obligations pursuant to the rules and
regulations of the SEC, as well as higher expenses for general and director and officer insurance, investor relations, and professional services.

Selling, general, and administrative expense increased by $223.6 million, or over 100%, for the three months ended September 30, 2021 as compared to the
same period in the prior year. The increase was primarily attributable to increases in share-based compensation expense of $177.2 million related to RSUs.
The increase was also attributable to personnel-related expenses of $26.6 million due to growth in headcount and other compensation related charges as we
grew our sales force and expanded general and administrative functions needed to scale our business. Additionally, we incurred increase in other allocated
overhead costs of $9.1 million primarily related to additional facilities to support the growing operations of our business.

Selling, general, and administrative expense increased by $397.8 million, or over 100%, for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 as compared to the
same period in the prior year. The increase was primarily attributable to increases in share-based compensation expense of $279.1 million related to RSUs
and the fourth closing of the Legacy Lucid Series E preferred stock issuance. The increase was also attributable to personnel-related expenses of $59.1
million due to growth in headcount and other compensation related charges as we grew our sales force and expanded general and administrative functions
needed to scale our business. Additionally, we incurred increases in other allocated overhead costs of $23.7 million primarily related to additional facilities
to support the growing operations of our business and increases in professional service fees of $16.4 million.

Change in Fair Value of Contingent Forward Contracts

Our contingent forward contracts provided the holder the right to purchase Legacy Lucid Series D preferred stock and Legacy Lucid Series E preferred
stock in future periods and were subject to remeasurement to fair value at each balance sheet date. Changes in the fair value of our contingent forward
contracts were recognized in the condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

Change in contingent forward contracts liability increased by $445.8 million, or over 100%, for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 as compared to
the same period in the prior year primarily due to the change in fair value of the Legacy Lucid Series E contingent forward contracts. The Legacy Lucid
Series E contingent forward contracts were settled during six months ended June 30, 2021.

Change in Fair Value of Convertible Preferred Stock Warrant Liability

Our convertible preferred share warrant liability related to the warrants to purchase shares of Legacy Lucid Series D preferred stock was subject to
remeasurement to fair value at each balance sheet date. Changes in the fair value of our convertible preferred share warrant liability were recognized in the
condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. All issued and outstanding shares of Legacy Lucid Series D preferred stock were
settled in March 2021 and there will no longer be future earnings adjustments pertaining to the convertible preferred share warrant liability related to
Legacy Lucid Series D preferred stock.

We recorded loss of $7.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 due to the changes in fair value of the convertible preferred stock warrant
liability related to Legacy Lucid Series D preferred stock upon the exercise and settlement of all outstanding warrants to purchase Legacy Lucid Series D
preferred stock.

Change in Fair Value of Common Stock Warrant Liability

On July 23, 2021, in connection with the reverse recapitalization treatment of the Merger, the Company effectively issued 44,350,000 private warrants to
purchase shares of Lucid’s common stock. The private warrants were initially recognized as a liability on July 23, 2021, at a fair value of $812.0 million.
The private warrants remained unexercised as of September 30, 2021 and the liability was remeasured to fair value as of September 30, 2021, resulting in a
loss of $24.8 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021, classified within change in fair value of common stock warrant liabilities in
the condensed consolidated statements of operations. See Note 8 - Common Stock Warrant Liability in our unaudited interim condensed consolidated
financial statements included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report for more information.
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Transaction Costs Expensed

In connection with the Merger, the Company incurred $38.9 million in one-time direct and incremental transaction costs, consisting of banking, legal, and
other professional fees. Transaction costs incurred by Lucid were allocated on a relative fair value basis between equity and liability-classified instruments
deemed to be issued for financial reporting purposes at the Closing by Lucid. The Company’s $36.2 million transaction costs allocable to equity-classified
instruments, including the common stock and public warrants, were charged as a direct reduction to Lucid’s additional paid-in capital of the gross proceeds
remitted to Lucid from Churchill. The Company’s $2.7 million transaction costs allocable to liability-classified instruments measured at fair value,
including the private warrants, were charged to the condensed consolidated statement of operations upon the Closing for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2021.

Interest Expense
Interest expense consists primarily of the interest incurred on our capital leases.

Interest expense did not significantly fluctuate during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021 as compared to the same period in the prior
year.

Other Income (Expense), net

Other income (expense), net consists primarily of foreign currency gains and losses. Our foreign currency exchange gains and losses relate to transactions
and asset and liability balances denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. We expect our foreign currency gains and losses to continue to
fluctuate in the future due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

Other expense did not significantly fluctuate during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021 as compared to the same period in the prior year.
Provision for (Benefit from) Income Taxes

Our provision for (benefit from) income taxes consists of an estimate for U.S. federal and state income taxes based on enacted rates, as adjusted for
allowable credits, deductions, uncertain tax positions, changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities, and changes in the tax law. We maintain a valuation
allowance against the full value of our U.S. and state net deferred tax assets because we believe it is more likely than not that the recoverability of these
deferred tax assets will not be realized.

The provision for (benefit from) income taxes did not significantly fluctuate during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021 as compared to
the same period in the prior year.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Sources of Liquidity

Since inception, we have financed our operations primarily from the issuances of equity securities, including convertible preferred stock and the proceeds
of the Merger, and convertible notes. As of September 30, 2021, we had $4.8 billion of cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments.

As an early stage growth company, we have incurred substantial net losses since inception. We expect to continue to incur net losses in accordance with our
operating plan as we continue to expand our research and development activities to complete the development of vehicles, establish our consumer base and
scale our operations to meet anticipated demand. We anticipate to continue spend on capital expenditures to support our commercialization and growth as
we continue our phased construction of our AMP-1, LPM-1 and international manufacturing facilities, purchase infrastructure for our vehicle production
and launch our retail studios to support our direct-to-consumer model. As of December 31, 2020, our non-cancellable commitments, as disclosed below in
“— Contractual Obligations and Commitments,” do not include any commitments related to these capital expenditures as we do not have any commitments
related to these capital expenditures that we cannot cancel without a significant penalty. In addition to our capital expenditures, we expect our operating
expenses to increase as we hire a commercial sales and service team and continue to invest in research and development. We expect these investments to be
a key driver of our long-term growth and competitiveness, but will negatively impact our free cash flow. We have based these estimates on assumptions
that may prove to be wrong, and we could utilize our available capital resources sooner than we currently anticipate. We believe that our cash on hand
following the consummation of the Merger, including the proceeds from the PIPE Investment, will be sufficient to meet our capital expenditure and
working capital requirements for a period of at least twelve months from the date of this Report. We expect to require additional capital to finance our
operations, which may include seeking additional capital through equity offerings or debt financings. The amount and timing of our future funding and our
commercialization requirements, if any, will depend on many factors, including the pace and results of our research and development efforts and our
commercialization efforts. We may be unable to obtain any such additional financing on reasonable terms or at all. Our ability to access capital when
needed is not assured and, if capital is not available to us when, and in the amounts needed, we could be required to delay, scale back or abandon some or
all of our development programs and other operations, which could materially harm our business, prospects, financial condition and operating results.
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The expenditures associated with the development and commercial launch of our vehicles, the anticipated increase in manufacturing capacity, and the
international expansion of our business operations are subject to significant risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control, which may
affect the timing and magnitude of these anticipated expenditures. These risk and uncertainties are described in more detail in the section entitled “Risk
Factors” in Part II, Item 1A.

Cash Flows

The following table summarizes our cash flows for the periods presented (in thousands):

Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2021
2021 2020
Cash used in operating activities $ (745,401) $ (377,407)
Cash used in investing activities (299,294) (355,860)
Cash provided by financing activities 5,236,843 892,575
Net increase in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash $ 4,192,148 $ 159,308

Cash Used in Operating Activities

Our cash flows used in operating activities to date have been primarily comprised of costs related to research and development, payroll and other general
and administrative activities. As we continue to ramp up hiring after starting commercial operations, we expect our cash used in operating activities to
increase significantly before it starts to generate any material cash flows from our business.

Net cash used in operating activities of $745.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 primarily consisted of $1,534.1 million of net loss,
adjusted for $895.0 million of non-cash charges and a decrease in net operating assets of $106.3 million. The non-cash charges primarily included losses
f